
Meeting of:  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: Tuesday, 31st July, 2018
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Hollingworth - (Room 108AB) - Number One 

Riverside

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 4 - 11

To consider the minutes of the meeting of Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held 19th June 2018 and the actions list arising 
therefrom.  

6.  WORK PROGRAMME 12 - 16

To note the Committee’s Work Programme 2018/19 

7.  GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

17 - 43

Public Document Pack



a. Economy, Business Growth and Skills Scrutiny Committee – 8th 
June 2018

b. Housing, Planning and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – 5th June 2018

c.  Corporate Issues and reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
– 18th April 2018 

8.  PROPERTY INVESTMENTS 44 - 46

To inform Members of the performance of the Council’s recent 
property investments. 

9.  DELEGATED APPROVALS 2017/18 47 - 50

The Committee is requested to scrutinise delegated approvals in 
respect of 2017/18. 

10.  FINANCE UPDATE REPORT 2018/19 51 - 58

To consider the Council’s financial position, as at the end of May 2018. 

11.  BUDGET 2019/20 TO 2021/22 GUIDELINES, TIMETABLE AND 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 

59 - 76

To inform the Committee of the budget guidelines, timetable and 
method of public engagement. 

12.  SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2020/21 77 - 83

The Committee is requested to scrutinise Savings Proposals for 
2019/20 to 2020/21. 

13.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

14.  SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2020/21 84 - 162

The Committee is requested to scrutinise Savings Proposals for 
2019/20 to 2020/21. 



Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor David Bamford
Councillor Malcolm Boriss Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Michael Holly Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Amna Mir Councillor Kallum Nolan
Councillor Shaun O'Neill Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Angela Smith

For more information about this meeting, please contact:

Peter Thompson, 
Governance and Committee Services,
Floor 2 Number One Riverside, Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924715

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 19th June 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Holly (in the Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, Joinson, 
Mir, O’Neill, Robinson and Angela Smith. 

OFFICERS:  N. Thornton (Director of Resources), M. Widdup (Director of 
Neighbourhoods), J. Rooney (Assistant Director - (Information, Customers 
and Communities), J. Murphy (Deputy Chief Finance Officer), L. Griffiths and 
P. Thompson (Resources Directorate)  

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Councillor O’Rourke (Cabinet Member – 
Resources) and one member of the public.

APOLOGIES
1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Boriss, Nolan 
and Donna Williams.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2 There were no declarations of interests.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
3 There were no items of urgency for the Committee to consider.

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
4 There were no confidential items for the Committee to consider.

MINUTES
5 Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, held 20th March 2018, be approved as a correct record.

HEALTH RELATED ABSENCE REPORTING
6 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Resources that 
provided fourth quarter and year end (2017/18) health related absence figures 
to Members, with an assessment against Directorate and Corporate targets. 

The fourth quarter health related absence figures (January – March 2018) 
indicated that the overall level for the Council was 2.71 days per Full Time 
Equivalent employee (FTE) (excluding schools staff), which was similar 
compared to the corresponding quarter in 2016/17 (2.72 days per FTE 
excluding schools). The year-end position for days lost to health related 
absences for 2017/18 was 9.22 days per FTE, which represented a reduction 
of 1.44 days compared to 2016/17 (10.66 days lost per FTE).  

The report compared Rochdale’s performance against the other authorities in 
Greater Manchester and members of the Committee were pleased to note 
that Rochdale was the third best (out of 10) performing authority in 2017/18. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



The best two authorities in this regard were Tameside Council (6.15 days 
absence per FTE) and Oldham (8.38 days absence per FTE). The Committee 
noted that Tameside’s figure were by a long way the best in Greater 
Manchester and the Chair asked if there were any lessons that the Council 
could learn from Tameside Council in respect of their sickness absence 
management performance. The Chair commented upon certain variances 
within the report and asked if, in future reports, some narrative could be added 
to explain these in fuller details.

Alternatives considered:
The report forms part of the Council’s performance management process, 
therefore no alternatives were considered.

Decision:
1. The Council’s Head of Human Resources Service be requested to 

liaise with Tameside MBC’s Human Resources Service to seek 
information as to the reasons behind their low levels of sickness 
absences.

2. That any significant variances in the report, insofar as it relates to 
Rochdale’s absence management figures, be accompanied by an 
explanatory narrative.  

Reasons for the decision:
The report provides Members of the Committee with an update of the health 
related absence data and the opportunity to scrutinise performance against 
targets.

RESOURCES AND NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLANS 2017-18 
QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE UPDATE AND DIRECTORATE PLANS 
2018-19
7 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Assistant Director 
(Information, Customers and Communities) detailing the progress at the end 
of quarter 4 (1st January 2018 – 31st March 2018) towards achievements of 
the targets contained in the Resources Directorate Plan 2017/2018 and in the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2017/2018.

In considering the element of the report that related to the Resources 
Directorate, members were updated on the ten actions that were still 
outstanding and Members were advised on the progress that was being made 
on all of these actions and which were due to be completed in line with 
revised timetables. In respect of the item relating to the ‘OD – Develop 
Workforce Planning’ (R17003) it was noted that this would be subject to a 
separate report to a future meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  

The Committee also scrutinised the Resources Directorate’s Directorate Plan 
2018/19. The Directorate Plan supported the Borough’s vision to ‘grow our 
economy and develop our borough through co-operation and partnership, 
improving the lives of local people and communities’. The Plan outlines what 

Page 5



actions the Resources Directorate will take over the coming year to support 
the achievement of corporate objectives.

In considering the Resources Directorate’s key objectives and priorities 
members of the Committee asked if reports relating to the Borough’s 
Organisational Strategy and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, both of which 
were due for submission to Cabinet for approval in 2018/19, could be 
presented to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to a 
Cabinet consideration.    

In considering the element of the report that related to the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate, members noted the two actions that were still due to be 
completed. It was suggested that the ‘support for the Community Safety 
Partnership (N17001) would be the subject of a presentation to a future 
meeting of the Committee. In respect of the Connected Council Programme - 
Phase 2, the Committee was advised that a report/presentation on this matter 
was due to be submitted to the Committee’s next scheduled meeting on 31st 
July 2018. The Chair also referred to action no. N17013 (Policy Advisor role) 
requesting that this matter be referred to a meeting of the Chairs and Vice 
Chairs of the Council’s three Overview and Scrutiny Committees for a more 
detailed consideration about the work relating to this post. 

The Committee also scrutinised the Neighbourhoods Directorate’s Directorate 
Plan 2018/19 which, similar to the Resources’ Directorate Plan, sought to 
support the Borough’s vision to ‘grow our economy and develop our borough 
through co-operation and partnership, improving the lives of local people and 
communities’. In considering the report, Members requested that the work 
around the developing Borough-wide Digital Strategy and the Corporate Plan 
be presented to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee at 
appropriate stages in 2018/19.

Decision:
1. A report relating to the Borough’s Organisational Strategy which was 

due for submission to Cabinet for approval in 2018/19 be presented to 
the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, prior to a Cabinet 
consideration.

2. A report relating to the Council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy, which 
was due for submission to Cabinet for approval in 2018/19 be 
presented to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, prior to 
a Cabinet consideration.

3. The action relating to ‘Support the Community Safety Partnership’ 
(N17001 – in the submitted report) be the subject of a presentation to a 
future meeting of the Committee.

4. A presentation/report relating to the Connected Council Programme – 
Phase 2 be the subject of a presentation to the Committee’s next 
scheduled meeting on 31st July 2018.

5. A meeting of the Chairs and vice Chairs of the Council’s three 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee be convened to consider action no. 
N17013 (Policy Advisor role) for a more detailed consideration about 
the work relating to this post. 

Page 6



6. That a report and/or presentation be submitted to the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in the autumn of 2018 regarding the 
development of the Borough-wide Digital Strategy. 

7. That a report and/or presentation be submitted to the Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in the autumn of 2018 regarding the 
development of the Borough’s Corporate Plan.

Reason for the decision:
The Committee had at a previous meeting approved the Directorate Plans in 
respect of the Resources Directorate and the Community Services elements 
of the Neighbourhoods Directorate. In accordance with the Council’s 
performance management framework; progress towards the targets contained 
in directorate plans were to be reported to relevant the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee at the end of each quarter. 

FINANCE UPDATE REPORT
8 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
provided details of the 2017/18 Budget position for Capital, Revenue, Savings 
and Collection Fund as at the end of January 2018. The Committee was 
advised that the report had previously been considered by the Cabinet at its 
meeting on 27th March 2018, where the recommendations contained therein 
were approved.

Alternatives considered:
There were no alternatives considered as not reporting on the Council’s 
financial position would not enable sufficient monitoring and identification of 
variations against the plan.

Decision:
That the financial update be noted.

Reason for resolution:
Effective budget management was considered to be critical to ensuring that 
financial resources were spent in line with the budget and were targeted 
towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of 
variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

COLLECTION FUND OUTTURN REPORT 2017/18
9 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
provided an update on the Council’s Collection Fund outturn position for 
2017/2018 and in considering this report the Committee noted that it had been 
previously considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on 29th May 2018 where 
the recommendations contained therein were approved.

Alternatives considered:
Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
considered to be critical to ensuring that financial resources are spent in line 
with the budget and are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring 

Page 7



enables the early identification of variations against the plan and facilitates 
timely corrective action. 

Decision:
That the 2017/2018 Collection Fund outturn position be noted.

Reason for decision:
The Collection Fund outturn report for 2017/18 was presented to Cabinet, on 
29th May 2018, and to this Committee meeting as part of the Council’s budget 
monitoring process.

FINANCE OUTTURN REPORT 2017/18
10 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer that 
provided details of the Council’s financial position as at the end of 2017/2018 
and in doing so the Committee noted that the report had been previously 
considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on 29th May 2018 where the 
recommendations contained therein were approved.

Alternatives considered:
Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
considered to be critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with 
the budget and are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring 
enables the early identification of variations against the plan and facilitates 
timely corrective action.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reason for decision:
Effective financial management is essential if the Council is to keep spending 
within available resources. It is vital that services make adjustments in 
spending to ensure that they spend in line with the approved budget.

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19
11 The Committee considered a Work Programme for the ensuing 
Municipal Year.  In considering topics for study groups to be undertaken in 
2018/19, the Committee was advised that the Communities, Regeneration 
and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee was planning to 
undertake a study into the Highways and Footpaths Improvement Programme 
that had recently been approved by the Cabinet, including scrutiny of the 
performance of the contractor, which undertook the majority of highways 
related works in the Borough, Balfour Beattie Limited and it was suggested 
that the Chair of the  Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee be approached to ascertain the value of undertaking 
a joint study into this matter.

Members also requested that further information relating to the Township 
Service be presented to a future meeting and the Chair advised that he was 
shortly due to meet with the Assistant Director (Information, Customers and 

Page 8



Communities) and the Townships Manager to discuss the future scrutiny of 
Township services.

Decision:
1. That the Committee’s Work Programme 2018/19 be noted.
2. The Chair of the Communities, Regeneration and Environment 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee be requested to undertake a joint 
study, with members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, into the Highways and Footpaths Improvement Programme 
that had recently been approved by the Cabinet, including scrutiny of 
the performance of the contractor, which undertook the majority of 
highways related works in the Borough, Balfour Beattie Limited.

3. A report relating to the Council’s Townships function be submitted to a 
future meeting of the Committee. 

GMCA CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE
12 Decision:
That the Minutes of the meetings of the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority’s Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
held 20th February and 20th March 2018 be noted.

Page 9



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Actions List (July 2018)

ISSUE/MEETING 
REQUESTED

ACTION RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER(S)

TIMESCALE OUTCOME

Call Centre/Agilisys 
Performance of KPI’s

The Assistant Director 
(Information, Customers and 
Communities), to submit a report 
detailing performance against 
agreed KPIs.

Mark Jones September 2018 The Committee 
agreed to receive 
twice yearly updates 
on progress against 
the KPI’s (and if 
necessary to visit 
the Call Centre to 
view its operations 
in an operational 
setting)

Asset Strategy The Head of Property Services to 
update the Committee on a 
revised/refreshed Asset Strategy in 
2018/19

Head of Property 
Services 

Report to the 
Corporate O&S 
Committee in July 
2018

Scheduled for 
submission to the 
Committee early in 
2018/19

Property Growth Fund 
Sub-Committee

The Head of Property Services to 
update the Committee providing an 
overview on the operations of the 
Property growth Fund Sub-
Committee

Head of Property 
Services

July 2018 Scheduled for 
submission to the 
Committee early in 
2018/19

Insurance Claims An annual report covering 
insurance claims will be presented 
to the Committee in the autumn of 
2018, to align with the insurance 
annual cycle (September – 
September)

Director of Resources Report to the 
Corporate O&S 
Committee in autumn 
2018

Scheduled for the  
meeting of the 
Committee to be 
held on 20th 
November 2018

P
age 10



Health Related 
Absences

RBC’s Head of Human Resources
1. To liaise with Tameside 

MBC regarding their 
excellent record regarding 
sickness absence 
management 

2. Any significant variances (in 
future reports) be 
accompanied by relevant 
narrative 

Director of Resources Report to the 
Corporate O&S 
Committee in January 
2019

Scheduled for the  
meeting of the 
Committee to be 
held on 22nd 
January 2019

Paperless Meetings To assess the feasibility of holding 
‘paperless’ meetings of the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Committee Services and 
members of the 
Committee

Throughout the 
2018/19 Municipal 
Year 

Issues to be scheduled:
a. Organisational Strategy (for RBC as a whole) – Head of Human Resources
b. Health and Wellbeing Strategy (for RBC as a whole) – Head of Human Resources
c. ‘Support the Community Safety Partnership’ – report to a future meeting – Assistant Director (Information, Customers and 

Communities)
d. Council Connected Programme – presentation to September 2018 meeting - Assistant Director (Information, Customers and 

Communities)
e. Role of the Policy Advisor – meeting of Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairs and Vice Chairs
f. Digital Strategy – report to a future meeting (autumn 2018) -  Assistant Director (Information, Customers and Communities)
g. Development of the Corporate Plan (autumn 2018) - Assistant Director (Information, Customers and Communities)
h. Study Group – Balfour Beattie/Highways Maintenance. First meeting to be held in September 2018

P
age 11



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

Who are we?

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members 
(reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions of the 
Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the 
how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline dates 
are as follows:  

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline
Agenda Publication 
Deadline

Date of meeting

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 7th June, 2018 Monday, 11th June, 2018 Tuesday, 19th June, 2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 19th July, 2018 Monday, 23rd July, 2018 Tuesday, 31st July, 2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 6th September, 2018

Monday, 10th September, 

2018

Tuesday, 18th September, 

2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 8th November, 2018

Monday, 12th November, 

2018

Tuesday, 20th November, 

2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Thursday, 10th January, 2019 Monday, 14th January, 2019

Tuesday, 22nd January, 

2019

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 30th January, 2019 Friday, 1st February, 2019

Monday, 11th February, 

2019

What we do
The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors. 

How we do it
The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 
methodology.

 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 
service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; 
corporate financial monitoring and the annual budget development 
consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and 
Directors.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals.

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate.

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance.
 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 

performance.
 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 

external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 

Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council.

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate.

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews.

 Consider annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council).

Page 13



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 
2018/19

19th June 2018

31st July 2018

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Delegated Approvals 2017/18 Financial scrutiny
Financial Update 2018/19 Financial scrutiny

Budget 2019/20 to 2021/22 
Guidelines, Timetable and Public 
Engagement

Financial scrutiny

Savings Proposals Financial scrutiny
Property Investments Performance monitoring and 

management
GMCA Scrutiny Committee minutes For information

18th September 2018

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
 Directorate Plan Update: 
 Resources Directorate
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Services) 
Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

 Presentation – Agilisys (presentation 
highlighting KPI’s)

Performance monitoring and 
management

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/19

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2017/18)
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance management and 
monitoring

Revenue Finance Outturn Report 
2017/18 

Financial scrutiny

Capital Finance Outturn Report 2017/18 Financial scrutiny
Savings outturn Report 2017/18 Financial scrutiny
Collection Fund Outturn Report 2017/18 Financial scrutiny
Delegated Approvals 2017/18 Financial scrutiny
GMCA Scrutiny Committee minutes For information

Page 14



Performance Monitoring: Corporate 
Complaints

Performance monitoring and 
management

Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2017/18

Performance monitoring and 
management

Financial Update Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny

Collection Fund 2018/19 Financial scrutiny

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2019/20 – 2023/24

Financial scrutiny

Discretionary Fees and Charges 
2019/20

Financial scrutiny

Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2021/22 Financial scrutiny

Schools Final Outturns and Reportable 
Surplus 2017/18

Financial scrutiny

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes For information

20st November 2018

Work Programme 2016/17 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Insurance Service – Annual Review Performance monitoring and 

management
 Directorate Plan Update: 2nd Quarter 

– 2018/19 (July – September)
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Savings Programme and Discretionary 
Fees and Charges (post consultation 
report)

Scrutiny of proposals

Budget Preparation:
 Calculation of the Council Tax 

Base 2019/20
 Setting the Business Rate Base 

2019/20
 Greater Manchester Waste 

Disposal Levy Allocation 2019/20

Financial scrutiny

22nd January 2019

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Presentation – Agilisys (presentation 
highlighting KPI’s)

Page 15



Performance Monitoring: 1st and 2nd 
Quarters 2018/19 (April – September)

 Corporate Complaints
 Health related absences

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Update reports: 3rd 
Quarter 2018/19 
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Budget Monitoring :
 Financial Update 2018/19
 Collection Fund Update 2018/19

Performance monitoring and 
management

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes

11th February 2019 (Budget Scrutiny meeting)

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Council Tax – Discount for Foster 
Carers

Budget development

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2018/19 – 2021/22

Budget Scrutiny

Treasury Management Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Corporate Debt Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Local Government Act 2003 (a statutory 
report on the robustness of the budget)

Budget Scrutiny

Revenue and Capital Budgets and 
Council Tax 2019/20  

Budget Scrutiny

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes

Page 16



Item 4

_______________________________________________________________________________________

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Page 1 of 8
8 June 2018

DRAFT GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY (GMCA)
ECONOMY, BUSINESS GROWTH AND SKILLS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD ON FRIDAY 8 JUNE 2018 AT the GMCA OFFICES

Present:

Bolton

Bury

Manchester
Oldham

Salford

Stockport
Trafford 
Wigan

Councillor Michael Holly (Rochdale) (in the Chair)

Councillor Susan Haworth
Councillor Kevin McKeon (sub)
Councillor Robert Caserta 
Councillor Mary Whitby 
Councillor Luke Raikes
Councillor Chris Goodwin
Councillor Hazel Gloster (sub)
Councillor Kate Lewis
Councillor Tanya Burch (sub)
Councillor Jude Wells
Councillor Barry Brotherton 
Councillor Charles Rigby

In attendance:

GMCA

Manchester
Airports Group

GMCA Officers

Richard Leese (Portfolio Leader Economic Strategy)

Tim Hawkins (Chief Strategy Officer, MAG)

Simon Nokes (Executive Director Policy & Strategy)
Susan Ford (GMCA Statutory Scrutiny Officer)
Jenny Hollamby (Governance & Scrutiny)

E32/18 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Barbara 
Brownridge (Oldham), Yvonne Cartey (Tameside), Karen Garrido 
(Salford) and Mark Hunter (Stockport).

E33/18 MEMBERSHIP FOR THE 2018/19 MUNICIPAL YEAR

The Committee noted its Membership appointed by the GMCA on 25 May 
2018 for the 2018/18 Municipal Year. 

RESOLVED: That Membership for 2018/19, as agreed by the GMCA at its 
meeting held on 25 May 2018 be noted.

E34/18 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 2018/19

The Statutory Scrutiny Officer asked for nominations from Members for 
the role of Chair for the 2018/19 Municipal Year. Councillor Robert 
Caserta (Bury) proposed Councillor Michael Holly (Rochdale) and 
Councillor Charles Rigby (Wigan) seconded the proposal. It was agreed 
that Councillor Michael Holly (Rochdale) be appointed as Chair of the 
Economy, Business Growth & Skills Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Item 4

_______________________________________________________________________________________

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Page 2 of 8
8 June 2018

the 2018/19 Municipal Year. Councillor Michael Holly took the Chair.

RESOLVED: That Councillor Michael Holly (Rochdale) be appointed as Chair 
of the Committee for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

E35/18 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 2018/19

The Chair asked for nominations for the role of Vice-Chair. Councillor 
Kate Lewis (Salford) proposed Councillor Karen Garrido (Salford) and 
Councillor Susan Haworth (Bolton) seconded the proposal. It was agreed 
that Councillor Karen Garrido be appointed as Vice-Chair for the 2018/19 
Municipal Year.

RESOLVED: That Councillor Karen Garrido (Salford) be appointed as Vice-
Chair of the Committee for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

E36/18 MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT AND ANNUAL DECLARATION OF 
INTEREST FORM

Members noted the Code of Conduct for their GMCA role. Members were 
reminded to complete the annual declaration of interest form and return it 
to the Governance and Scrutiny Officer within 28 days of their 
appointment onto the Committee.

RESOLVED: 1. That Members noted the code of conduct.
2. That Members complete the annual declaration of interest 

form within 28 days of their appointment onto the Committee.

E37/18 TERMS OF REFERENCE

Members noted the terms of reference and agreed the dates and times of 
future meetings. Members also agreed that future meetings would 
commence at 2.00 pm.

E38/18 CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS

There was no urgent business.

E39/18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Jude Wells (Stockport) declared a personal interest in Item 10 
on Manchester Airport: Economic as her partner being a member of the 
Consultative Committee, Councillor Luke Raikes (Manchester) also 
declared an interest as he also sat on the same Committee.  

E40/18 MANCHESTER AIRPORT:ECONOMIC IMPACT AS A SIGNIFICANT 
ASSET

Consideration was given to a report that set out how Manchester Airport 
and the Manchester Airports Group (MAG) supported GM’s growth 
ambitions. The report outlined the economic benefits delivered by 
Manchester Airport as a strategic asset for GM and the Northern 

Page 18



Item 4

_______________________________________________________________________________________

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Page 3 of 8
8 June 2018

Powerhouse, and highlighted Manchester Airport’s performance against 
similar airports. It also set out MAG’s longer-term investment plans and 
how those would continue to support GM’s aspirations around 
internationalisation and economic development. 

Tim Hawkins, Chief Strategy Officer, Manchester Airport Group 
introduced the item and highlighted the following areas:

 Growth in GM had been strong over the last ten years.
 The direct route to Beijing was particularly important as a new route to 

market.
 The new pier was expected to be completed in April 2019.
 The impact of growth of Manchester Airport would be greater than the 

Heathrow expansion.
 Access to the airport from districts in the north required improvement.
 The Airport City South site was now fully committed with no spare 

sites. 

Members were asked to be mindful of commercial sensitives when asking 
questions. In discussion, the main areas covered were:

 The Chair welcomed the detail of the report and noted the scale of the 
Airport’s growth opportunities of the Airport, and the work had taken 
place on the Enterprise Zone. 

 Discussions took place about Air Passenger Duty (APD). Lobbying 
efforts have been focussed on securing an ‘APD holiday’ on new long 
haul routes or the implementation of an introductory rate. It was hoped 
that such an approach would incentivise commercial opportunities, 
increase the tax base and could be easily implemented. 

 Was Manchester Airport an anchor institution in relation to inclusive 
growth in the city region? The Committee were assured that MAG was 
committed to responsible development and reported on Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) measures in their annual report. These 
included measures on social, environmental and economic 
employment across the region and would be shared with Members.

 Members requested more information regarding how it was intended 
to increase apprenticeship numbers. The Committee were informed 
that that MAG’s approach had focused on providing good quality 
apprenticeships with an emphasis on technological skills. Workforce 
training was also discussed and the work MAG did towards workforce 
training and developing employees’ skills, for example in customer 
service and security roles, was highlighted. There had also been 
problems with accessing the apprenticeship levy. MAG additionally 
emphasised that they were committed to carrying out more work in 
this area. 

 Members noted that the report stated 30% of the workforce 
volunteered and asked whether this percentage could be attributed to 
MAG initiatives or whether this reflected employees who volunteered 

Page 19



Item 4

_______________________________________________________________________________________

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Page 4 of 8
8 June 2018

anyway. It was clarified that this percentage was a MAG target and 
was included in the measures in their Annual CSR Report. It was also 
noted that MAG worked with other companies on site to encourage 
employees to volunteer. 

 A Member raised Chinese Investment, as referenced in paragraph 4.2 
of the report, and questioned whether there were any concerns 
associated with this. Members were informed that relevant risk 
management procedures were followed and that Chinese investment 
represented a relatively small percentage of the total being invested in 
the Airport and within the city region.   

 Members requested more information in relation to MAG’s work to 
award contracts locally. MAG had set a target of 75% spend on the 
Manchester Airport Transformation Programme being awarded to 
suppliers within 30 miles of the airport and this was being met. This 
was monitored with contractors and had formed part of the 
procurement process and contract award. 

 Members queried whether MAG had analysts for assessing the 
Airport’s impact on climate change. Members were informed that this 
was outsourced to external companies. MAG also have set clear 
targets for reducing carbon emissions and worked with external 
auditors to verify these figures. The MAG CSR lead was active in a 
UK Industry Partnership called Sustainable Aviation. This brings 
together relevant partners to identify opportunities to reduce overall 
carbon emissions in the long term.  Increasing fuel efficiencies of 
planes and improvements in airfield management could also assist 
with emission reductions.  

 Members supported improving access to Manchester Airport from 
across the conurbation. 

 A Member asked whether information was available on which GM 
areas were accessing employment and procurement opportunities 
within the airport. It was confirmed that this data was available and 
would be circulated to the Committee.   

 Members noted the Airport’s Enterprise Zone status and it was asked 
what work took place with local universities in relation to this.  It was 
noted that companies within the Enterprise Zone worked with 
universities according to their business requirements. Additionally 
MAG had recently commissioned a research from Manchester 
Metropolitan University around attitudes towards and societal impacts 
on aircraft noise.  

 Members asked what was meant by bilateral aviation agreements. It 
was explained that these were agreements between countries which 
allowed access to aviation space and for airlines to fly to countries. A 
large proportion of these agreements were determined through EU 
agreements and would need to be renegotiated following the UK 
leaving the EU. Discussions were ongoing currently around this. The 

Page 20



Item 4

_______________________________________________________________________________________

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Page 5 of 8
8 June 2018

Committee would be notified if their support was needed for the 
lobbying of government. 

 Members raised potential issues about competing internationally with 
other airports following Brexit. The potential of the Manchester Airport 
transformation programme was highlighted in relation to this as was 
the discussions taking place around the reform of APD to enable the 
UK to compete at an international level.   

  
RESOLVED: 1. That the report be noted.

2. That it be agreed that the MAG Annual Report, which 
highlighted their Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) work, 
be circulated to Members of the Committee. 

3. That it be agreed that information on GM areas accessing 
employment, apprentices and procurement opportunities at 
the Airport be circulated to the Committee. 

4. That the Committee supported MAG in its lobbying to 
government around high-speed rail connectivity into the 
airport (HS2 and Northern Powerhouse rail) and aviation 
policy issues, including air passenger duty (APD) and bilateral 
aviation agreements.

E41/18 LOW PAY IN GM

Members considered a report, introduced by the GMCA’s Chief 
Economist, Alan Harding, which provided a summary of the analysis of 
low pay in GM and some of the GMCA’s policy responses to low pay. 

 It was noted that the task and finish group was going to focus its 
efforts on the GMCA’s employers’ charter and how this could drive 
social value. A report would be provided at a future meeting when 
more in-depth work had been undertaken.

 How could the data collected at district level support reporting on an 
inclusive economy? Change would be measured and recorded in the 
State of Greater Manchester Report using a whole range of measures, 
acknowledging the limits of GVA as a measure. The productivity 
puzzle would be considered. Measures were being defined that 
districts supported.

 Development of the workforce in local authorities was a district 
responsibility and would impact on inclusivity. Members were 
encouraged to find out about ethical procurement in their own districts.

 A Member asked that references to the living wage also make 
reference to the foundation wage.

 A Member asked how low pay and low productivity could be improved. 
Investment and output did have a relationship, but there were sector 
specific challenges with improving productivity of the service sector. 
There was also a positive relationship with improved productivity 
following investment in education and skills.

Page 21



Item 4

_______________________________________________________________________________________

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Page 6 of 8
8 June 2018

 Regarding the low skilled, were there opportunities to improve 
workers’ skill levels? Research showed that for people who were in 
and out of work, 35% of them stayed in low paid work. Workers had to 
move jobs to improve pay and training. There were statutory training 
entitlements to support the acquisition of level 2 qualifications in 
English and maths. There were loans available to support training, but 
these loans needed to be more flexible to make them more attractive.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and that this work informs the work of 
the task and finish group on ‘a fair economy and fair wages’.

E42/18 SKILLS AND EMPLOYMENT 

Members considered three skills and employment reports as follows:

a) Devolution of the Adult Education Budget (AEB)

A report was considered that informed Members of the progress of the 
Adult Education Budget devolution to GM. Attached to the report was a 
copy of the latest report, which was presented to the GMCA, for 
information.

In discussion, the main points referred to were noted as follows:

 Chief Executives of districts had delegated power to provide 
consent.

 Concerns were raised about the financial risks to the GMCA. 
Discussions were on-going with government and the memorandum 
of understanding (MoU) would be shared with Members. Treasury 
could not provide reassurance about the financial risks at this 
point. 

 Appendix B of the report may form part of the MoU. Any problems 
would be reported back to the Committee.

 Members were concerned about the European Social Fund being 
available. It would not be available when the UK left the European 
Union (EU). It was envisaged that a similar fund would be 
available. Statutory functions were not dependent on the fund.

 A Member asked about colleges and governance. It was advised 
that there would be no change. Colleges would have contracts with 
the GMCA and Department for education (DfE).

 Members wanted to know about the impact of learners from 
outside GM studying in GM colleges. The Committee were assured 
that it was not envisaged that this would be a problem and that 
officers were looking at arrangements with individual colleges. 

 In terms of the aims of education, there was no mention of learning 

Page 22



Item 4

_______________________________________________________________________________________

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Page 7 of 8
8 June 2018

RESOLVED:

RESOLVED:

for pleasure. The purpose of the adult education budget was to 
provide training that employers wanted. It was about high level 
skills, which was a statutory requirement. 

That the report be noted and that it be noted that local authorities 
would be required to provide consent within a very short 
timescale following receipt of the final Order in June 2018.

b) Amendment to Skills Funding
Members considered a report that provided an update about the youth 
contract expansion and GM apprenticeship grant for employer’s projects. 
The projects had now concluded. However, they had all been delivered 
the budget, therefore funding was available for GM to continue to provide 
support to young people. Agreement had been reached with government, 
which allowed for the continuation of these funding strands to be kept and 
delivered by the GMCA. The report had been agreed with the GMCA 
Skills & Employment Portfolio Lead, and subject to approval by the 
GMCA, set out the detail of the available funds, grant conditions attached 
to them and recommendations for future use of the funds in line with the 
GM strategy priorities 2 and 3, and the GM work and skills priorities.

Members asked a range of questions, which were noted as follows:

 Members supported the use of the remaining budget for continued 
project activity. The team was working with all 10 districts and 
Leaders regarding the budget.

 A Member asked why the programmes were under budget. It was 
explained that funds were saved because of recruiting a smaller 
number high level apprenticeships which were more costly to 
deliver. However, overall targets for numbers of apprentices had 
been met.

That the report be noted and the proposals for future spend be 
supported as detailed in the report.

c) LGF Application – Skills Capital
Consideration was given to a report that updated Members on the latest 
position of the Skills Capital Funding and also presented the outcome of 
the appraisal of both Bury college and Tameside college’s round 1 full 
detailed applications. The appraisal process had been carried out by 
GMCA staff, with subsequent meeting with the individual colleges.

It was agreed that a report on the bidding process and outcome would be 
received at a future meeting.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

E43/18 WORK PROGRAMME

A report was presented that set out the Committee’s work programme for 

Page 23



Item 4

_______________________________________________________________________________________

GMCA, Economy, Business Growth and Skills 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Page 8 of 8
8 June 2018

Members to develop, review and agree.

It was agreed that a 30 minute session would be held prior to the next 
meeting on 13 July 2018 to allow Members to focus on the work 
programme. 

Members expressed interest in the following areas:

 Internationalisation.
 Brexit.
 Work of the Growth Hub.
 Local enterprise partnerships (LEPs).
 Graphene Institute (as a GM asset to be utilised).
 The Mayor being invited to attend a future meeting
 Fawcett Society to be invited to a meeting on women’s employability.
 Work and health (November 2018).
 LGF Application – Skills Capital (bidding process and outcome report)

The Statutory Scrutiny Officer agreed to update the work programme 
accordingly.

RESOLVED: That the Statutory Scrutiny Officer update the work programme 
as outlined above.

E44/18 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 13 APRIL 2018

The minutes of the last meeting dated 13 April 2018 were submitted for 
approval.

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 April 2018 be 
approved as a correct record.

E45/18

E46/18

RESOLVED:

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
It was noted that the next meeting would take place on Friday 13 July 
2018 at 2.00 pm, Boardroom GMCA, Churchgate House, 56 Oxford 
Street, Manchester M1 6EU.

PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS

That the programme of meetings for 2018-19 be approved as follows:

2018 2019
13 July 2.00pm 11 January 2.00pm
17 August  2.00pm 8 February 2.00pm
14 September 2.00pm 15 March  2.00pm
12 October 2.00pm 12 April 2.00pm
16 November  2.00pm 17 May 2.00pm  
7 December 2.00pm 14 June 2.00pm

12 July 2.00pm

Page 24



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 1 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

DRAFT GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY (GMCA) 
HOUSING, PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

5 JUNE 2018 AT 10.30 AM AT THE GMCA OFFICES 
  
Present: Councillor Lisa Smart (Stockport) (in the Chair) 
   
Bolton 
 
Manchester 
Oldham 
Rochdale 
Salford 
Stockport 
Tameside 
Trafford  
Wigan  
 

Councillor Shamim Abdullah 
Councillor Andrew Morgan 
Councillor Paula Sadler 
Councillor Hazel Gloster (Substitute) 
Councillor Linda Robinson  
Councillor Stuart Dickman 
Councillor Laura Booth 
Councillor Mike Glover  
Councillor Bernard Sharp 
Councillor Lynne Holland 
Councillor Fred Walker (Substitute) 
Councillor Michael Winstanley  

   
In attendance: 
GMCA 
 
 
 
TfGM 
 
GMCA 

 
Salford City Mayor Paul Dennett (Portfolio Lead for Planning, Housing and 
Homelessness)  
Councillor Alex Ganotis (Portfolio Lead Green City Region) 
Andy Burnham (Mayor of Greater Manchester) 
Gareth Turner (Head of Fares and Ticketing, TfGM) 
Stephen Rhodes (Customer Director, TfGM) 
Simon Nokes (Executive Director of Policy and Strategy)  
Steve Rumbelow (Lead Chief Executive for Planning and Housing) 
Steve Fyfe (Head of Housing Strategy)  
Kevin Lee (Director of the Mayor’s Office)  
Julie Connor (Assistant Director, Governance and Scrutiny)  
Sarah Mellor (Head of Corporate Services, Waste and Resources Team)  
Michelle Lynch (Waste and Resources Team) 
Susan Ford (Statutory Scrutiny Officer) 
Jenny Hollamby (Governance and Scrutiny) 

   
Apologies: Councillors: Dorothy Gunther (Bury), Catherine Preston (Bury), James 

Larkin (Oldham), Graham Whitham (Trafford) 
and James Wilson (Manchester) 

   
 Officers: David Taylor (Executive Director, Waste and Resources 

Team, GMCA), and Dr Carolyn Wilkins (Lead Chief 
Executive for Green City Region) 

   
The Assistant Director, Governance and Scrutiny opened the meeting and welcomed all those present.  
   
M56/HPE MEMBERSHIP- FOR THE 2018/19 MUNICIPAL YEAR 
  
 The Committee noted its membership for the 2018/19 Municipal Year. 

Item 4 

Page 25



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 2 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

  
 RESOLVED: That the Committee note its membership for the 2018/19 Municipal 

Year. 
  
M57/HPE APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 2018/2019 
  
 The Assistant Director, Governance and Scrutiny invited nominations from Members for 

the role of Chair for the 2018/19 Municipal Year. Councillor Andrew Morgan (Bolton) was 
proposed by Councillor Laura Booth and seconded by Councillor Linda Robinson 
(Rochdale). However, Councillor Andrew Morgan (Bolton) declined the nomination and 
instead proposed Councillor Lisa Smart (Stockport) and the proposal was seconded by 
Councillor Lynne Holland (Wigan). It was agreed that Councillor Lisa Smart be appointed 
as Chair of the Housing, Planning and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 
the 208/19 Municipal Year. Councillor Lisa Smart took the role of Chair, thanked 
Members for the appointment and welcomed new Members to the meeting.  

  
 RESOLVED: That Councillor Lisa Smart (Stockport) be appointed as Chair of the 

Housing, Planning and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
for the 2018/19 Municipal Year. 

  
M58/HPE APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 2018/2019 
  
 The Chair invited nominations from Members for the role of Vice-Chair for the 2018/19 

Municipal Year. The Chair proposed Councillor Andrew Morgan (Bolton) and seconded 
by Councillor Michael Winstanley (Wigan).  

  
 RESOLVED: That Councillor Andrew Morgan (Bolton) be appointed as Vice-Chair of 

the Housing, Planning and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for the 2018/19 Municipal Year. 

  
M59/PHE MEMBER’S CODE OF CONDUCT AND ANNUAL DECLARATION OF INTEREST FORM 
  
 Members noted the code of conduct. Members were reminded to complete the annual 

declaration of interest form contained within the agenda and return it to the Governance 
and Scrutiny Officer within 28 days of their appointment onto the Committee. 

  
 RESOLVED: 1. That Members noted the code of conduct. 

2. That Members complete the annual declaration of interest form and 
return it to the Governance and Scrutiny Officer within 28 days of their 
appointment onto the Committee. 

  
M60/HPE TERMS OF REFERENCE 
  
 Members noted the terms of reference contained within the agenda and agreed the 

dates of future meetings. A discussion took place about timings of meetings, which 
covered appropriateness, working arrangements, cost/savings and transport issues for 
evening meetings. It was agreed that future day time meetings would commence at 
11.00 am and evening travel arrangements would be discussed with Members outside 
of the meeting.  

Page 26



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 3 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

  
 RESOLVED: 1. That the Committee’s terms of reference be noted 

2. That the Committee’s proposed dates and times of future meetings 
(all meetings to be held in central Manchester) be agreed: 

 12 July 2018 (6.00 pm) 

 16 August 2018 (11.00 am) 

 13 September 2018 (11.00) 

 11 October 2018 (11.00 am) 

 15 November 2018 (6.00 pm) 

 13 December 2018 (11.00 am) 

 10 January 2019 (6.00 pm) 

 14 February 2019 (11.00 am) 

 14 March 2019 (6.00 pm) 

 11 April 2019 (11.00 am) 

 16 May 2019 (6.00 pm) 

 13 June 2019 (11.00 am) 

 11 July 2019 (6.00 pm) 
3. That travel arrangements for evening meetings would be discussed 
with Members outside of the meeting. 

  
M61/HPE CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
  
 There was no urgent business. 
  
M62/HPE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
  
 Councillor Lynne Holland (Wigan) declared a personal and prejudicial interest in Item 13 

– Introduction of a Zonal Fare Structure on the Metrolink Network by virtue of her being 
a Member of Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM). Should there be a vote on any 
matter during consideration of the item then Councillor Lynne Holland would leave the 
meeting at the appropriate juncture. 

  
M63/HPE TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING DATED 13 MARCH 2018 
  
 The minutes of the last meeting dated 13 March 2018 were submitted for approval. 
  
 There was one outstanding action arising from previous minutes and it was explained 

that further information on the reduction of the number of trips that would be required 
to achieve the necessary improvements in air quality would be available around 30 July 
2018. 

  
 RESOLVED: That the Committee approved the minutes of the last meeting on 13 

March 2018 as a correct record. 
   
M64/HPE WASTE AND RESOURCE STRATEGY  
  
 A report was presented that updated the Committee on the work being carried out in 

relation to the review of the Waste and Resource Strategy. 
  

Page 27



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 4 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

 The Leader of Stockport Council (Green City Region Portfolio Lead) explained how stronger 
links could be forged between the waste agenda and the wider Greater Manchester agenda 
especially in terms of the waste and resource strategy, which needed to be reviewed every 
five years. Whilst the review would have been undertaken in 2017, it had been delayed to 
obtain further clarity in both European Union (EU) and national policy. Since the EU 
released waste targets and the government published its 25 year environmental plan, the 
review had commenced and was being undertaken by the waste and resources team. 
Strategy consultation with all key stakeholders would take place over the next three 
months and the Committee was asked to consider the draft strategy again in September 
2018. The strategy would then be implemented at the end of April 2019.  

  
 The Head of Corporate Services and Principal Corporate Services Officer provided Members 

with a presentation, which explained zero waste, the technical solution, the partnership, 
2016/17 performance, interim arrangements, the new waste management contract (from 
April 2019) and next steps. 

  
 Officers expanded on the performance achieved contained within the presentation and 

advised that overall recycling rate for 2016/17 was 46.7%. However, that had dropped by 
3% in 2017/18 due to a fire at the Bolton thermal recovery facility and further 
unsatisfactory facility performance. It was a good news story for waste collection 
authorities (WCAs) as they were delivering 50% into the contract. The diversion rate was 
85% for this year and the Household Waste Recycling Centre (HWRC) recycling rate was 
40%. Through the interim contract, facilities were being modified to increase performance 
and provide further savings 

  
 In discussion, the main points raised were as follows: 
  
  Bin contamination and the cost efficiency of the new three pronged procurement 

approach was discussed. Contamination was a problem at the kerbside and for facilities. 
Not many loads were rejected as operatives did sort the waste when it was delivered 
and to allow the maximum amount of product to be recycled. To combat the problem, 
there was a considerable amount of Greater Manchester communications work to be 
undertaken to address these challenges. In terms of the Asian markets, it was a 
complication and districts would need to look at the way they were collecting material 
for these markets. The PFI contract had been terminated as it was not cost efficient. 
However, under the new interim arrangements, the mechanical and biological 
treatment (MBT) plants would be modified to simplify the process and bring costs down 
over the next 12 months. It was envisaged that the new three pronged procurement 
approach would make further significant savings.   

  
  National and local best practice, the Waste and Resources Action Programme (WRAP) 

partnership work, and up to date research informed the waste team’s work. New ideas 
generated were piloted and benchmarking across waste disposal authorities (WDAs) 
and districts was undertaken. As Greater Manchester was the biggest WDA, it often to 
led the way with innovation and it was the first WDA to drive down the residual waste 
capacity.  

  
  Disposal of plastics (not just plastic bottles) was a big issue. WRAP was undertaking work 

in this area with the industry to standardise and minimise plastic waste. It was a 

Page 28



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 5 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

complicated issue and relevant recycling messages for the public and retail industry 
were needed. Incentives across the market needed to be aligned about using cheap 
plastic items and the cost of recycling them. China was banning the import of plastics 
for recycling, which had added a further pressure. How plastics were disposed of was 
part of a wider challenge for the UK and was part of the 25 year plan. Technology was 
available to recycle plastics like yoghurt pots however, there was no end market for low 
grade plastics and so recycling was not cost effective.  

  
  Influencing retailers about their excessive plastic packaging was an issue. End producer 

responsibility legislation and EU targets through the circular economy would see a step 
change but it would be slow. To raise awareness more quickly, it was suggested that 
consumer opinions on excessive packaging would have a greater impact rather than 
government legislation. Consumers had the most influence. 

  
  Members agreed that the zero waste was the right strategy. However, residents were 

recycling in good faith as per the packaging. If the packaging said it could be recycled 
then residents often recycled it. However, Councils could potentially penalise them for 
recycling incorrectly or for bin contamination. It was extremely confusing. Customer 
messages in this area were crucial. It was a journey for residents. A concern was raised 
about common policy, stronger powers (penalties) and whether this was 
counterproductive.  

  
  It was explained that the diversion rate was material that was not sent to landfill, which 

was anything on the waste hierarchy from recovery and above such as low grade wood 
and residual waste being delivered to the centres. It was any material that could not go 
to the combined heat and power (CHP) facility in Runcorn.  

  
  It was agreed that the waste and resources team would provide Members with recycling 

statistics in each district. A Member suggested that leaving packaging at the 
retailers/supermarkets would give them a clear consumer message that excessive 
packaging would not be tolerated. Officers advised that similar campaign had happened 
in Bristol. A circular economy with consumer power as the driving force was needed to 
drive change. The top recyclers were Trafford and Stockport. Each district was 
monitored and if a contamination problem was identified behavioural change work in 
targeted areas was undertaken.  

  
  Education and behavioural change work with residents was needed before penalties 

were applied. Recycling needed to be as easy as possible for residents four bin system 
was not used properly it could cause contamination. However, it was mentioned that 
some councils had up to 12 receptacles per household for recycling.  

  
  The GMCA at its April 2018 meeting, agreed to constitute a Committee that considered 

waste matters and to bring back terms of reference for that Committee in June 2018. 
The GMCA had made a request for the nine Councils who were part of the waste 
contract to nominate a person to sit on that Committee. This would then be formally 
constituted at the end of June 2018. 

  
  It was agreed that an update on the procurement would be considered by the 

Committee at its meeting on 13 December 2018. 

Page 29



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 6 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

  
 RESOLVED: 1. That the report be noted. 

  2. That the work being undertaken by the waste and resources team be 
endorsed. 

  3. That the draft Waste and Resource draft strategy would be 
considered by the Committee again on 13 September 2018. 

  4. That the Committee would be provided with a procurement update 
in December 2018. 

  
M65/HPE GREATER MANCHESTER HOUSING PACKAGE  
  
 Consideration was given to a report that updated the Committee on the announcement 

and the implementation of a Greater Manchester Housing Package including Greater 
Manchester’s commitments and the support the government had agreed to provide. 

  
 The Salford City Mayor advised that the Housing Package had recently been agreed with 

government. Four bids for further funding had also been agreed. In addition, government 
had announced the provision of £10.25m of funding to Manchester City Council for a 
scheme in Collyhurst. Greater Manchester had committed to deliver 227,000 homes 
between 2015/16 and 2034/35, accelerated delivery rates to 12,375 homes per annum. It 
was crucial to demonstrate GM’s ability to deliver. Conversations were underway with 
government about the level of Benefit Cost Ration (BCR) to be applied to the fund, and 
whether this should be 1.5 across the whole package or 1.5 for each scheme. To date some 
districts’ housing fund schemes had not been successful but discussions were taking place 
with government and Homes England to see how these might be progressed. It was noted 
that further government funding may not be released if Greater Manchester could not 
deliver.  

  
 Member’s raised the following questions: 
  
  Members suggested that more emphasis was needed on delivering 

appropriate/inclusive housing for those with additional support needs or for GM’s aging 
population. It was noted that there had been housing impacts arising from the welfare 
reform. Work was underway evaluating health and social care schemes with a view to 
them being rolled-out. In terms of the housing need, it was a matter for local core plans 
and strategies and the responsibility for this sat with districts. 

  
  A discussion took place about ceasing the housing market when it was buoyant. Never 

before had so much government funding been received to deliver. Government knew 
there was a desire to build. The additional funding would prioritise brownfield land. 

  
  Having a pipeline of schemes ready to go was important and would show that the public 

sector was capable of delivering. However, there was need for the 10 districts to act 
strategically and this was a role for GM. Funding had been received for a team that 
would support this work.  

  
  £350m had been received to unlock difficult sites and it was important to deliver these 

outputs otherwise future funding could be jeopardised.  
  

Page 30



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 7 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

  Members wanted assurance about the deliverability of this ambitious programme. 
Members were reassured that proposed schemes were deliverable and that this would 
be helped by a central team who would provide support to districts. 

  
  Members were keen to understand how social housing could be supported by this 

work. A paper on this issue would be considered by the Housing and Planning 
Commission, and it was planned that a letter would be written to the Secretary of State 
about working with Greater Manchester on this agenda. 

  
  A Member asked for further clarity about the £2bn of national government funding 

available to help councils and housing associations build, how the package would help 
the homeless and would there be quality homes for rent. It was explained that there 
had been no further details about this funding but Officers would make enquiries with 
the Secretary of State. Rented/home ownership allocations and were unknown.  
 

 A Member was concerned that on mixed tenure schemes affordable homes to buy and 
rent were only available on less desirable parts of developments. In response it was 
suggested that there should not be a difference in quality. These types of issues would 
be dealt within districts through their plans and their planning committee, but there 
was a recognised need for high quality mixed tenure housing within any development.  

  
  There were concerns raised about the implementation of the asylum contract in areas 

of the country with lower housing costs. Work with government to address these 
concerns was taking place.  

  
  The Chair was concerned that the delay of the publication of the draft GMSF and 

progress of districts’ local plans might impact on the delivery of homes on these 
schemes. The Committee was assured that districts were under enormous pressure to 
deliver housing and it was envisaged that this would happen within three years of this 
programme. It was also noted that Salford was over delivering on their objectively 
assessed housing need and were in the top five nationally for building homes. Ways to 
mitigate impact on green belt through the GMSF were the town centre challenge and 
urban density. Brownfield sites needed to be considered first. The strategic approach 
to this was extremely important. District collaboration was crucial to delivery. 

  
  To inform the Committee’s work programme, the following areas of activity would be 

added for consideration, 10 year homelessness strategy and ending rough sleeping by 
2020. The City Mayor was happy to work with the Committee and his portfolio work 
programme. 

  
  Information on the Planning and Housing Commission would be circulated to Members 

with a view to Members attending meetings and appointing a lead Member in this area. 
  
 RESOLVED: 1. That the Committee welcomed the announcement of the outline of 

the Greater Manchester housing package. 
2. Discussed and commented (see M65/HPE) the issues outlined in the 

report to inform the final agreement and implementation of the 
package. 

  

Page 31



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 8 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

M66/HPE UPDATE ON TOWN CENTRE CHALLENGE  
  
 The GM Mayor presented a report that updated the Committee on the progress with the 

town centre challenge. The report contained information on the work that had been carried 
out since the start of the year and the outcomes of a number of meetings and events in 
different town centres across Greater Manchester.  

  
 The report focussed on the progress made and the approach, which was focused on the 

whole town centre offer and addressing the wider issues of towns outside Greater 
Manchester. The Land Fund, GMSF and Mayoral powers around intervention could be used 
as tools to help achieve the desired results. A move to the delivery phase was now required. 
The GM Mayor had accepted Royton as Oldham’s nomination. Thus far the most developed 
schemes so far were Prestwich, Stockport and Stalybridge. Stockport town centre would be 
given a considerable boost by the interchange scheme would be signed off by the GMCA in 
June 2018. If a district council asked, a Mayoral Development Area could be established to 
stimulate developments including housing. There was a huge appetite for the town centre 
challenge. The GM Mayor wished to remind districts that this initiative would continue for 
as long as necessary and no town centre would be left behind.  

  
 Members raised a number of questions, which were noted as follows: 
  
  Members agreed that retail opportunities had decreased and so the approach 

focused on town centre living was welcomed, but wished to know about timescales, 
delivery plans, district input and plans to mitigate any slippage. The GM Mayor 
advised that pressure was on the GMCA to deliver on this initiative but timescales 
were often dependent on the market and private developers. Schemes would move 
at different times. Stockport was a good example of what the town centre challenge 
could achieve. Members’ attention was also drawn to the work of the Walking and 
Cycling Commissioner and his team, who had worked quickly with the transforming 
cities fund and would present the outline of their proposal very soon. In every town 
centre challenge event, public realm and the improving the quality of life agenda 
was prominent and would provide the right context for further investment in in 
housing development. 

  
  Members hoped that the Stockport interchange scheme would stimulate the night 

time economy but that the increased attractiveness of the area could also result in 
gentrification. It was acknowledged that this was a real challenge but the GMSF 
would address some of the issues along with ambitions around affordability with 
policies to support. There was a danger of lifting an area economically, but putting 
it out of reach of the people who lived there. These impacts would be monitored 
moving forward. 

  
  A Member welcomed the move from a retail to a leisure and residential focus and 

asked what support was available for independent bars, shops and the 
development of cultural offer. The Mayor explained that it was about making town 
centres attractive place and then housing providers and retailors would want to 
invest. At the recent district events, organisations who might be able to support the 
broader regeneration of town centres such as the Arts Council, Canal Trust and 
National Lottery had been represented. 

Page 32



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 9 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

  
  A discussion took place about the unforeseen consequences of the town centre 

challenge, in particular converting old buildings into inadequate, shoddy 
accommodation and the challenge of strategic sites having multiple ownership. 
Compulsory purchase orders powers could be used in these circumstances to make 
the heart of the town attractive. However, this was a matter districts to determine.  

  
  Finally, the Chair advised the GM Mayor that the Committee’s remit included 

transport and suggested that Northern and Network Rail representatives be invited 
to the next meeting to understand the current issues with the May 2018 timetable 
disruption. The GM Mayor encouraged the Chair to invite them to the meeting. 

  
 RESOLVED: 1. That the contents of the report be noted. 
  2. That the Committee be kept informed of further work and further 

announcements over the summer. 
 
M67/HPE 

 
INTRODUCTION OF A ZONAL FARE STRUCTURE ON THE METROLINK NETWORK  

  
 Members considered a report presented by TfMG’s Customer Director and the Interim 

Head of Fares & Ticketing, about the proposed introduction of a zonal fare structure on the 
Metrolink network that had been considered and agreed by the GMCA on 25 May 2018 
(Annex A of the report) and provided an opportunity for Members to be involved in this 
work. A further report would be considered by the Committee on 12 July 2018 prior to it 
being considered by the GMCA.  

  
 The idea was to bring about a simpler, more convenient and a better value for money 

charging system. It was highlighted that Metrolink did not receive public subsidy on an 
operational basis, it had to entirely cover its costs. Income from fares had to operational 
cover costs and borrowings to fund system improvements. . 

  
 Members asked the following questions: 
  
  Members queried if the short public engagement period was enough and if the 

website allowed passengers to check how much their fare would increase for a 
route they would typically take. Members were advised that all the proposed fares 
under the proposed zonal system were available on TfGM’s website to allow the 
customer’s to compare the impact of these changes. However, the fares that would 
be charged under the current pricing system (ie. if the zonal proposal was not 
adopted) were not available. These fares would increase under the agreed formula 
which was includes using the retail price index (RPI) which would not be known until 
July 2018. This formula, agreed by the GMCA in September 2017, is RPI+1%+1.33%. 
Members were also advised that TfGM was restricted to 20p increments as child 
fares were set at 50% of the adult fare and ticket machines did not accept any 
denomination of less than 10p.  

  
  A Member asked why the consultation period was only two and a half weeks. There 

were two reasons, the GM Mayor was keen there was a public engagement and 
secondly, was to allow the implementation of contactless payments to be made at 
the same time. A longer formal consultation would not allow all changes including 

Page 33



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 10 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

contactless to be made in early 2019. It was recognised that the proposed customer 
engagement activity was compressed, however it made sense to make all changes 
together in early 2019. The Chair encouraged more public engagement when 
changes were planned. 

  
  It was confirmed that the national concessionary pass would continue to give free 

travel on all parts of the Metrolink after 9.30 am. It was noted that TfGM received 
national funding for use of that pass only on buses. The extension of the pass for 
use on rail and tram within Greater Manchester was locally funded. Concessionary 
fares would increase in line with other fare increases. 

  
  A Member asked about full access to Bury Metrolink station and when it would be 

fully operational as there had been problems for over two years. Officers 
acknowledged that it was not good enough but repairs were taking place in July 
2018. 

  
  What assurances could TfGM give Members that the transition to the new system 

would go smoothly and that mitigation plans were in place to tackle any potential 
issues? Members were advised that the work to implement contactless systems had 
started six months ago. TfGM had learned from previous projects to move to a more 
agile approach to delivery. TfGM was piloting contactless implementation to make 
sure the software was functional followed by a beta phase then finally a launch 
period at the end of this year. 

  
 RESOLVED: 1. That the contents of the report be noted. 

2. That the Committee’s comments be noted. 
  3. That the Committee be kept updated on any progress. 

4. That members are updated on the work to restore full access to Bury 
Metrolink station.  
 

M68/HPE WORK PROGRAMME 2018/2019 
  
 Members considered the work programme for the 2018/2019 Municipal Year. The 

following items were agreed for consideration at the next meeting on Tuesday 12 July 2018: 
  
  1.  Cycling and walking update. 
  2.  Green summit springboard report (for information). 
  3. The performance of Northern and the implementation of the May 2018  

  timetable improvements. 
  4. GMSF plans for public consultation. 
  

Members were asked to contact the Statutory Scrutiny Officer with any suggested items 
for inclusion in the work programme. 

  
 RESOLVED: That the above (see M68/HPE) items be considered at the next meeting. 

 

Page 34



_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA, Housing, Planning & Environment  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 11 of 11 
5 June 2018 

 

M69/HPE DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  
  

 It was noted that the next meeting would take place on Tuesday 12 July 2018 at 6:00 pm at 
the GMCA offices. 

  

Page 35



 
 

1 
 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE GMCA CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WEDNESDAY 18 APRIL 2018 6.00PM, AT 

CHURCHGATE HOUSE, MANCHESTER 

 

PRESENT 

Councillor Nathan Evans  Trafford Council (Chair) 

Councillor Debbie Newall  Bolton Council 

Councillor Stella Smith  Bury Council 

Councillor Pickstone  Bury Council 

Councillor Zahra Alijah  Manchester City Council 

Councillor Luke Raikes  Manchester City Council 

Councillor Colin McLaren  Oldham Council 

Councillor Ateeque Ur Rehman Oldham Council 

Councillor Peter Malcolm   Rochdale Council (Substitute Member) 

Councillor David Jolley  Salford City Council 

Councillor Yvonne Guariento Stockport Council 

Councillor John McGahan  Stockport Council 

Councillor John Bell   Tameside Council 

Councillor Leanne Feeley   Tameside Council  

 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE 

Andy Burnham GM Mayor  

Eamonn Boylan   Chief Executive, GMCA 

Simon Nokes     Executive Director, GMCA 

Dawn Docx Interim Chief Fire Officer, Greater Manchester Fire & 

Rescue Service (GMFRS) 

Leon Parkes    Assistant Chief Fire Officer – Service Support, GMFRS 

Gwynne Williams   Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA 

Paul Argyle Multi-Agency Strategic Advisor to the Mayor and Deputy 

Mayor, GMCA 

Item 9 

Page 36



 
 

2 
 

Claire Norman   Director of Communications and Engagement, GMCA 

Kevin Lee Director of the Mayor’s Office, GMCA 

 

Susan Ford    Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA 

Donna Parker    Governance and Scrutiny, GMCA 

 

CI/52/17 APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Neil Butterworth (Rochdale Council) 

and Joanne Marshall (Wigan). 

 

CI/53/17 CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 

There were no Chair’s Announcements or urgent business raised. 

 

CI/54/17  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillors Peter Malcolm and Debbie Newall declared a Personal Interest in ‘Item 5 – The 

Response to the Kerslake Report’ by virtue of receiving a Firefighters’ Pension from 

GMFRS. 

 

CI/55/17 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 16TH JANUARY 2018 

The minutes of the meeting held 20th February 2018 and notes from the inquorate meeting 

held on 20th March 2018 were submitted for consideration.   

Resolved/-  

1. That the minutes of the Meeting held 20th February 2018 be approved as an accurate 

record.  

 

2. That the notes from the inquorate meeting held on 20th March 2018, be noted. 

  

CI/56/17          THE RESPONSE TO THE KERSLAKE REPORT 

Consideration was given to a report of Dawn Docx, Interim Chief Fire Officer, GMFRS which 

detailed The Kerslake Report: an independent review into the preparedness for, and 

emergency response to, the Manchester Arena attacked on 22nd May 2017 that was 

published on 27th March 2018. An extract from The Kerslake Report which referred to ‘The 

Page 37



 
 

3 
 

response of Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service (GMFRS) to the Arena attack, 

was detailed at the Appendix to the report. This report was requested by the Chair of the 

Committee. 

The GM Mayor, Andy Burnham was in attendance and advised that he had commissioned 

a non-statutory independent review of the events and aftermath of the Manchester Arena 

Terrorist Attack in July 2017 as part of his role as Police and Crime Commissioner. The 

Review had focused on Greater Manchester’s preparedness for and response to the attack 

and the nine days that followed it. The Independent Review was chaired by Lord Bob 

Kerslake, the former Head of the Civil Service. The Review made a number of 

recommendations for Greater Manchester emergency services, Government, other local 

and national bodies, and the media. The report highlighted several areas that went well, 

which included: 

- Investment in emergency planning meant people were generally able to act with a 

high degree of confidence. 

- Actions by individuals and organisations on the night demonstrated enormous 

bravery and compassion. 

- Good judgement was exercised by key emergency personnel at critical points during 

the evening. 

- The civic response was exceptional. 

- Vital support and comfort was provided by family liaison officers and bereavement 

nurses. 

- The removal of the deceased from the Arena was treated with care and sensitivity. 

The Review also identified three key areas which did not go so well, which included: 

- GMFRS did not arrive at the scene and therefore played no meaningful role in the 

response for two hours. That meant a valuable resource was not available to assist 

on the scene. 

- The set-up of an effective emergency response line for families was seriously 

hampered by the complete failure of a telephony system provided by Vodafone. This 

caused considerable distress on the night to families who were frantically seeking to 

find out more information about what had happened to their loved ones. 

- The Panel was shocked and dismayed by the accounts of the families of their 

experiences with some of the media. They spoke of being ‘hounded’ and of a ‘lack of 

respect’. The Panel believes that for families to have experienced such intrusive and 

overbearing behaviour at a time of such vulnerability was completely and 

unacceptable. 

The outcomes of the Review were to help ensure that Greater Manchester could be fully 

prepared for any future incidents and also to share learning across the country. At the same 

time Greater Manchester was learning from colleagues in London and in other international 

cities where there have been terrorist attacks too. Dawn Docx advised that since the 

preparation of the report the outcomes of the Review had been discussed at a national level 

and the role of the National Inter-Agency Liaison Officer was now being clarified. 

Page 38



 
 

4 
 

The Committee had a detailed discussion on the content of the response and raised the 

following queries and comments:- 

A Member advised that she had recently attended a meeting of the Fire Task and Finish 

Group which had been set-up to co-design a focused performance report for GMFRS and 

suggested that a representative from the Fire Brigades Union could be invited to attend a 

future meeting of the Committee to discuss the morale of firefighters and how this could be 

improved moving forward. In response, Andy Burnham supported this request. 

A Member advised that at the meeting of the Committee on 19th December 2017 the Interim 

Chief Fire Officer had attended and advised that the Committee was the body which had a 

statutory responsibility for scrutinising decisions relating to GMFRS. Firefighters had an 

extensive skillset and this could have assisted both Greater Manchester Police and North 

West Ambulance Service at the Arena attack, however, assistance from GMFRS was not 

requested. In response, Dawn Docx reported that the Review had highlighted the lack of 

communication between the agencies and improvements had now been put in place to 

ensure that this would not happen again as a GMFRS representative would be co-located 

with the other agencies at Gold Command and multi-agency learning would take place 

following the outcomes of the Review. In addition, procedures had now been changed at 

North West Fire Control to ensure that GMFRS were able to respond more flexibly to these 

type if incidents in the future. 

Andy Burnham advised that the rendezvous point on the night was Manchester Cathedral, 

however, GMFRS crews followed their own protocol and deployed to Philips Park Fire 

Station, if they had attended the original rendezvous point they would have gathered 

intelligence from other agencies.  

A Member mentioned that it was vital that North West Fire Control in Warrington and the 

GMFRS Command Room in Swinton act in a joined up way in response to any incident. 

Andy Burnham commented that the Review had highlighted the weaknesses at North West 

Fire Control and moving forward these arrangements would be reviewed to ensure that a 

joint Fire Control was still the correct decision for GMFRS.  

Andy Burnham advised that the Review had made recommendations for National 

Emergency Response Arrangements to Government and he would be writing to the Prime 

Minister seeking Government support to implement these changes. He reported that 

Government had refused to fund the Kerslake Review. 

A Members sought clarity that the Review would build in a more flexible approach to 

response if a similar incident was to occur. In response, Andy Burnham commented that the 

fire and rescue service culture was very different to other blue light services, in part 

responding to different operational challenges, and going forward this would be reviewed to 

implement a more flexible approach. Dawn Docx advised that a new Fire Plan was in the 

process of being written, that would be subject to consultation, and would focus on the future 

needs of both GMFRS and the local communities. Reference was made to the fire and 

Page 39



 
 

5 
 

rescue services improved relationship with the Health and Safety Executive and that 

Government needed to develop national guidance for such incidents. 

Paul Argyle advised that protocols were in place for bespoke incidents and collaboration did 

take place on a daily basis with other blue light services. 

The Chair made reference to the low morale of firefighters within GMFRS which had been 

caused by the outcomes from the Arena attack, low recruitment, proposed changes to the 

shift system and the pay dispute which and had seen the withdrawal of firefighters 

responding to cardiac arrests. Another Member advised that he had reflected on the findings 

from the review and comments raised and sought clarity on how these would be progressed. 

In response, Andy Burnham advised that following the outcomes from the Kerslake Review 

a GMCA Transformation Review was being implemented and the terms of reference for the 

review were currently being finalised more details about the review would be submitted to 

the Committee in due course. The Review was due to conclude in December 2018. 

The Chair made reference to the role of the current Fire Committee and in response, Andy 

Burnham advised that an internal governance review was in the process of taking place and 

a report would be submitted to the GMCA on 27th April 2018 detailing future proposals. He 

sought clarity on the cost implications of the review and how the non-fire and rescue service 

recommendations would be progressed. Also, could reports be sought from other attacks 

which had taken place both nationally and internationally to ensure that lessons could be 

learnt moving forward. 

In conclusion, Andy Burnham confirmed that the he would report back to the Committee 

with a formal response to each part of the Review and would share with the Committee the 

letter to the Prime Minister detailing the recommendations which were the responsibility of 

Government. He reported that the Arena attack was a brutal test to all emergency services 

and to Greater Manchester as a whole and in response Greater Manchester stood-up well.  

It was reported that Kathy Oldham was the appointed Chief Resilience Officer for GMCA 

and the role included leading the Civil Contingences Resilience Unit and developing a 

resilience strategy for Greater Manchester. Reference was also made to the David 

Anderson QC's report on MI5 and police reviews following the attacks in London and 

Manchester between March and June 2017 that was published by Government on 5th 

December 2017. 

Andy Burnham advised that he had also commissioned a Preventing Hateful Extremism and 

Promoting Cohesion Commission Board that was chaired by Councillor Rishi Shori. The 

Commission had been set-up to run parallel with the Independent Review into Greater 

Manchester’s preparedness and response to the Manchester Arena and the findings from 

the Commission were due to be reported by the end of June 2018. 

Resolved/- 

1. That the content of the report, and comments raised, be noted. 

 

Page 40



 
 

6 
 

2. To circulate the terms of reference for the GMFRS’s Review.  

 

3. The Committee be regularly updated on progress on GM’s response to the Kerslake 

Review and the broader review of GMFRS. 
 

4. That at the request of the Committee a representative from the Fire Brigades Union 

be invited to attend a future meeting of the Committee. 
 

CI/57/17 GREATER MANCHESTER STRATEGY (GMS) PERFORMANCE 

DASHBOARD 

Consideration was given to a report of the Simon Nokes, Executive Director of Policy and 

Strategy, GMCA which presented a draft 2 year Greater Manchester Strategy (GMS) 

Implementation Plan and a copy of the first six-monthly GMS dashboard report that was 

detailed at the Appendix to the report. 

The Committee welcomed the report and commented that the dashboard would provide a 

better understanding of performance in the round and would allow Members to drill into the 

detail of the 10 priorities. 

It was reported that the dashboard would be updated every six-months and would be 

reported to the three Overview and Scrutiny Committees, the GMCA and the GM LEP.  

Resolved/- 

1. That the actions set out in the 2 year GMS Implementation Plan and comments 

raised, be noted. 

2. That the Greater Manchester Strategy (GMS) Performance Dashboard, which had 

been updated to reflect feedback from the GMCA Overview and Scrutiny 

Committees, be noted. 

3. That the 2 year GMS Implementation Plan and the GMS Performance dashboard, be 

noted, prior to being submitted to the meeting of the GMCA on 27th April 2018, for 

consideration and formal approval. 

 

CI/58/17 WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 AND 2018/19 

The Committee received an updated work programme following comments and suggestions 

made at the last meeting.  

The Committee were requested to review their work programme going forward, noting that 

June’s agenda contained six items and it was suggested that the (1) GMFRS 

Communications Update and (2) GM Public Sector Apprenticeship Approach Update be 

taken as written updates and the GMCA Communications and Engagement Strategy and 

the GMFRS Accelerated Recruitment Training 2018/20 be deferred until July’s meeting.   

Page 41



 
 

7 
 

In conclusion, it was agreed that the work programme should be updated as follows:- 

 

Resolved/- That the Committee’s Work Programme for the 2017/18 and 2018/19 be 

updated accordingly and considered at the next meeting of the Committee. 

 

CI/59/17 FUTURE MEETING DATES 2018 

Resolved/:  

 

1. That the next meeting of the Corporate Issues Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 

the 2017/18 municipal year take place on Tuesday 19th June 2018 at 6.00pm at 

Churchgate House, Manchester  

 

2. Agreed that the meeting dates for the Corporate Issues Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee in the 2018/19  municipal year, take place on the following dates:- 

 

Tuesday 19 June 2018    6.00pm   Churchgate House, Manchester 

Tuesday 17 July 2018    6.00pm   Churchgate House, Manchester 

Tuesday 21 August 2018    6.00pm  Churchgate House, Manchester 

Tuesday 18 September 2018  6.00pm  Churchgate House, Manchester 

Tuesday 16 October 2018 at  6.00pm Churchgate House, Manchester 

Tuesday 20 November 2018   6.00pm  Churchgate House, Manchester 

Tuesday 11 December 2018   6.00pm  Churchgate House, Manchester 

MEETING DATE  TOPIC CONTACT OFFICER 

19 June 2018 

6.00pm 

GMFRS Quarter 4 Performance Update Dawn Docx, GMCA 

School Ready to Learn  Jane Forrest, GMCA 

Task and Finish Group’s Update Susan Ford, GMCA 

GMFRS Communications Update 

(Written Update) 

Dawn Docx, GMFRS 

 GM Public Sector Apprenticeship 

Approach Update (Written Update) 

Gemma Marsh, GMCA 

   

17 July 2018 

6.00pm 

GMCA Communications and 

Engagement Strategy 

Claire Norman, GMCA 

 GMFRS Accelerated Recruitment 

Training 2018/20 

Dawn Docx, GMFRS 

Page 42



 
 

8 
 

Tuesday 22 January 2019   6.00pm   Churchgate House, Manchester 

Tuesday 19 February 2019  6.00pm   Churchgate House, Manchester 

Tuesday 19 March 2019    6.00pm  Churchgate House, Manchester 

Tuesday 16 April 2019   6.00pm   Churchgate House, Manchester 

Tuesday 21 May 2019   6.00pm  Churchgate House, Manchester 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 31 July 2018

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Development & 
Housing

Report Author Peter Gregory

Public/Private Document Public

Property Investments

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

This report is to inform Members of the performance of the Council’s recent 
property investments.

The report indicates that at this point the investments are achieving/exceeding 
the performance targets that were established for this activity.

Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that Members note the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 The report is provided for Members’ information.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

Since March 2017 the Council has been implementing a commercial property 
investment strategy, designed to achieve rental income and revenue savings 
from acquiring an investment portfolio, whilst contributing to the Council’s 
overall regeneration aims for the borough.

A budget of £30m has been made available for these acquisitions. The 
objective of the strategy is to promote regeneration and secure a rental return 
on its investments, which will deliver, as a minimum, £450,000 net budget 
savings after costs, including any borrowing costs. Income received over and 
above these targets is held in an earmarked reserve to cover any future 
liabilities (including potential capital expenditure or reductions in income), or to 
contribute to future investments.

Page 44

Agenda Item 8



4.3

4.4

As part of the capital programme the Council has also approved a £40m Direct 
Development Fund, to generate income through direct development projects 
by the Council which are not captured within the criteria of the existing 
investment funds, allowing the Council to act as a developer maximising land 
potential and land value, with a focus on under-utilised brownfield sites 
throughout the Borough.

Alternatives Considered

This report is provided for information only. There are no alternatives to 
consider.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 The Chief Finance Officer has reviewed the financial position in relation to the 
Council’s property investments in terms of the performance of the commercial 
property investments in both 2017/18 (actual) and 2018/19 (Quarter 1 
forecast). 

5.2 In 2017/18 the Council invested a total of £19.6m across three property 
acquisitions.  After associated costs, the net savings target of £75k was 
achieved in full, and a contribution of £267k was made to the earmarked 
reserve.
  

5.3 Per the current position (Quarter 1, 2018/19), the Council has invested a total 
of £21.7m across four acquisitions.  The rental income forecast to be received 
from these properties in 2018/19 is expected to cover all associated costs 
(including borrowing costs), and is forecast to generate a net £319k saving 
against the 2018/19 savings target of £450k to contribute towards the 
Council’s overall revenue budget.   Achievement of the full £450k savings 
target is dependent upon the utilisation of the remainder of the £30m fund in 
the current financial year, however this will depend on the availability of 
suitable acquisition opportunities.   Contributions to the earmarked reserve in 
2018/19 are currently forecast at a net £200k.  

5.4

5.5

As part of financial monitoring processes a forecast is prepared showing the 
expected performance of the fund over the next 20 years, based on current 
acquisitions and assumptions formulated during the detailed due diligence 
process for each acquisition.  This includes expectations around future void 
periods, lease renewals and capital expenditure requirements.  The position 
as at Quarter 1 2018/19 shows that the required level of savings from current 
investments is forecast to be achieved over the next 20 years, via the 
utilisation of earmarked reserves to mitigate years when income is expected to 
reduce and/or costs are anticipated to increase.   

Expenditure to date from the Direct Development Fund totals £1.97m in 
relation to the ‘Logic@Kingsway’ scheme currently underway on Kingsway 
Business Park.    

Risk and Policy Implications

Page 45



The risk on any property investment is that market conditions may change, 
resulting in loss of income or capital value. However, property is widely 
regarded as a secure long term investment.  The Council is mitigating this risk 
via the creation of an earmarked reserve as described in paragraph 4.2.  

6.1

Consultation

7.1 The financial performance of the investments is monitored by the Chief 
Finance Officer.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Peter Gregory, Tel: 01706 923323, 
Peter.Gregory@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 46



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 31st July 2018
Portfolio Councillor Allen Brett

Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for 
Resources

Report Author Stuart Smith (For Central 
Finance)

Public/Private Document Public

Delegated Approvals 2017/18

Executive Summary

1. To provide details of approvals of spend under delegated powers, Financial 
Regulations 2a and 2d, in relation to Revenue and Capital Schemes funded by 
additional grants or income during 2017/18.

Recommendation

2. That approval of spend under delegated powers made by Services during 
2017/18 be noted.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Financial regulations require a retrospective report be made to Cabinet 
providing a summary of the schemes that have been approved where 
delegated powers are exercised.

Key Points for Consideration

4.         Capital and revenue expenditure aims to support the delivery of services and 
the achievement of priorities and objectives.

4.1 The Financial Regulations give delegated authority to Directors to approve 
additional expenditure up to £250,000 if the additional expenditure is funded 
by additional grants/income.

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



4.2 There have been no approvals for amounts between £250,000 and £500,000 
in 2017/18.

4.3 An annual report is required under financial regulations to provide details of 
approvals given under delegated powers.

4.4 The extent to which delegated powers have been exercised to approve 
revenue and capital expenditure met from grants/income during 2017/18 is 
outlined in Section 5.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.

Page 48



DELEGATED APPROVALS SUMMARY 2017/18
Financial Regulation 2a = Capital
Financial Regulation 2d = Revenue

SERVICE TYPE OF PROJECT/SCHEME
FINANCIAL 

REGULATION
FUNDING 

TYPE
AMOUNT 
(£000'S)

Childrens Services
Delivery Support Fund 2A - Capital Grant 5.0

Sub Total Capital 5.0

CIRT Funding E0550 Ed Psychs - Critical Incident/Community Cohesion Training 2D - Revenue Grant 13.2
EH&S Equalities Team 2D - Revenue Grant 4.8
Early Intervention and Prevention Grant 2D - Revenue Grant 45.0
30 Hours Childcare Guaranteed First Term Grant 2D - Revenue Grant 13.4
Delivery Support Fund 2D - Revenue Grant 40.0

Sub Total Revenue 116.4
CHILDRENS SERVICES 
GRAND TOTAL 121.4

Neighbourhoods
Warm Home Fund 2A - Capital Grant 134.4

Sub Total Capital 134.4

Volunteer development / training in relation to Restorative Justice Services. 2D - Revenue Grant 5.0
Night Time Economy Work 2D - Revenue Grant 5.0
Hate Crime Awareness Week - Feb 2018 2D - Revenue Grant 10.5
Night Time Economy Work 2D - Revenue Grant 5.0
Rochdale Literature and Ideas Festival – Generation Z (2018/19) 2D - Revenue Grant 49.2
Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Club 2D - Revenue Grant 2.0
Rochdale Veterans Breakfast Club 2D - Revenue Grant 2.5
Borough Bonfires & Firework displays 2D - Revenue Grant 3.0
PCC GM GMP DRAWING 2D - Revenue Grant 234.0
Core Support for victims of domestic violence and abuse 2D - Revenue Grant 40.0
New Burden Funding - Transparency Code 2D - Revenue Grant 13.1
Channel Shift 2D - Revenue Grant 15.0
Integrated Place Team Local Implementation Plan 2D - Revenue Grant 150.0

Sub Total Revenue 534.3
NEIGHBOURHOODS  
GRAND TOTAL 668.7

Resources
Changes to Work-related Activity Group payments in Employment and Support Allowance 2D Revenue Grant 6.5
New Burdens Funding - Discretionary Housing Payment scheme administration 2D Revenue Grant 49.5
Local Authority Data Sharing (LADS) 2D Revenue Grant 8.3
To fund further changes to the DWP LADS programme 2D Revenue Grant 1.8
New Burdens Funding - DWP require us to implement various Welfare Reform measures (RSRS, LSTC, BSP & 
RTI) 2D Revenue Grant 12.9
Real Time Information (RTI) Bulk Data Matching 2D Revenue Grant 3.3
2017/18 Universal Credit Support Funding 2D Revenue Grant 2.7
DWP require us to implement various Welfare Reform measures (e.g. benefit cap, temporary absence) and 
acknowledge these will  require additional staffing resource, which they provide New Burdens funding to 
facil itate. 2D Revenue Grant 46.0
DWP require us to use Tax Credit information on earnings, to ensure consistency with earnings used in 
Housing Benefit calculations. 2D Revenue Grant 56.7
To reimburse costs incurred in the delivery of 3 new reliefs determined in the 2017 Spring Budget. 2D Revenue Grant 12.0
The funding is for costs associated with providing services in support of DWP claimants’ transition from 
housing benefit to Universal Credit. 2D Revenue Grant 49.6
Processing RTI issued by DWP to align earnings information used in benefits and tax credits. 2D Revenue Grant 7.7
2017/18 Universal Credit Support Funding 2D Revenue Grant 2.2

Sub Total Revenue 259.2

RESOURCES GRAND 
TOTAL 259.2

ALL SERVICES GRAND 
TOTAL 1,049.3

Risk and Policy Implications

6.       There are no major legal implications arising as a result of this report except to 
note that debts that are recoverable can be enforced by court action in 
accordance with the court procedure rules.

Page 49



Consultation

7. All services engage with the production of the service based financial 
information within this report. The Leadership Team, Cabinet Member for 
Finance, and opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have been informed of 
the 2017/18 financial position of the Council and its implications for future 
years. The report will be presented to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
on 31st July 2018.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact Stuart 
Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith (For Central Finance)

Tel: 01706 924196 
stuart.smith@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 50



Report to Cabinet

Date of Meeting 26th June 2018
Portfolio Councillor Allen Brett

Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Stuart Smith 

Public/Private Document Public

Finance Update Report 2018/19

Executive Summary

1.1 To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
the Council’s financial position as at the end of May 2018.

1.2 The Finance Update Report contains detail of the following:

 Capital spend is forecast to be in line with budget.
 The forecast Revenue position is a pressure of £0.733m.
 Savings of £0.507m are forecast to be achieved, as part of the 

Revenue budget.
 Forecast 2018/19 Collection Fund surplus position of £3.346m.

1.3 Effective financial management is essential if the Council is to keep spending 
within available resources. It is vital that services make adjustments in 
spending to ensure that they spend in line with the approved budget.

Recommendation

2.1 That the forecast 2018/19 budget positions for Capital, Revenue, Savings and 
the Collection Fund as at the end of May 2018 are noted.

2.2 That approval be given to the Revenue Budget Pressure Fund requests 
detailed in 
4.2.4.

2.3 To note the capital scheme changes shown in section 4.1.4.

Page 51

Agenda Item 10



Reason for Recommendation

3.1. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 
authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial 
resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 
Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 
against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

This report provides an overview of the forecast 2018/19 financial position for 
the Council and focuses on the position as at the end of May 2018.  A further 
detailed report will be provided at September Cabinet.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Capital Budget 2018/19

The current 2018/19 Capital Budget is £99.993m.  The table below shows a 
summary of the movements:

£m £m £m
Base Budget as per Budget Council February 2018 59.371 61.167 21.540
Budget Changes
Approved Balance brought forward from prior years 40.578 0.210 0.010
Amendments to Capital Budgets 0.044 - -
CAPITAL BUDGET MAY 2018 99.993 61.377 21.550

2018/19 2020/212019/20

4.1.1 Brought Forward Budget

Services who have brought forward budgets from previous years of greater 
than £1m are detailed in the table below:

Directorate Scheme Funding Method
Rephasing of > £1m 
from Previous Years

£m

Childrens Services New Place Planning External Funding 8.790
Childrens Services Schools Cap Condition Programme External Funding 2.554
Economy River Roch Flood Storage Borrowing 1.567
Economy Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration Borrowing 1.289
Economy Rochdale Market Borrowing 2.338
Economy Asset Development Fund Capital Receipts 1.050
Economy Property Growth Fund Invest to Save 10.435

TOTAL 28.023

4.1.2 Capital Budget Adjustments

Page 52



Details of the Budget adjustments are listed below:
 Children’s Services: £0.038m increase in Department for Education 

grants
 Neighbourhoods - increase of £0.006m budget to reflect a minor 

change relating to 2017/18.

4.1.3 At this early stage of the financial year we would not expect any variances 
and services are currently forecasting to spend in line with the budget.

4.1.4 Capital Scheme Changes

Economy – Town Centre scheme

It is proposed to combine three existing project budgets within the Town Centre 
Scheme to create a single project by merging

 Rochdale town centre (3 year strategy) budget (£300k)
 Rochdale Conservation Area Improvements budget (£185k)
 Rochdale Market budget (estimated £1.1m). 

This new project (£1,585,000) would support & enhance the Rochdale Riverside 
scheme and the town centre Conservation Area.  The project will deliver a range of 
public realm and property improvements, which is eligible spend under the approved 
Rochdale town centre (3 year strategy) and the Rochdale Conservation Area 
Improvements projects. The Rochdale Market budget, previously allocated for 
additional acquisitions, will be reallocated to deliver public realm and property 
improvements. 

Economy – Junction 19 scheme

The funding was originally envisaged to match National Productivity Investment 
Funding however this funding is no longer available but an alternative source of 
funding has been identified.

The proposal is to match fund an agreed allocation of £3m from the GMCA Local 
Growth Fund to support economic growth in the South Heywood area.  The 
alternative match funding would enable the completion of a planned extension of the 
Junction 19 link road scheme within the timescale of the GMCA funding programme 
to realise additional employment growth within the Borough.  

4.2. Revenue Budget 2018/19

4.2.1. The budget set by Budget Council on 28th February 2018 was £203.674m and 
there have been no changes to date:

Page 53



Budget Changes

Approved by When Reason for change Amount (£m)
Budget Council Mar-18 Approved budget 203.674
GRAND TOTAL 203.674

4.2.2 The overall position taking account of the projections currently being forecast 
by services as at the end of May 2018 is an overspend of £0.733m.

4.2.3 The major (>£0.250m) variations to controllable budget, by service, are 
detailed below:-

Neighbourhoods Service - £0.733m Overspend
The Service is requesting budget pressure funding to mitigate £0.531m of 
pressures (see section 4.2.4 for the detail).

There are further pressures totalling £0.202m within the Service relating to:
 Pressures associated with the car parking service (£0.074m);
 shortfall in rental income relating to the Number 1 Riverside retail unit 

(£0.075m)
  and underachievement of highways sponsorship (£0.053m).

The Service is currently considering options to mitigate these pressures.  An 
update on the position will be provided in the Finance Update to be presented 
to September Cabinet.

Children’s Service – Potential Pressure Update
The Service is predicting an overspend in relation to External Residential 
Placements due to an increase of children looked after by the Local Authority. 
In 2017/18 spend on External Residential Placements exceeded the budget 
by £1.200m. The Service is currently assessing the existing and forecast 
future level of demand to quantify the pressure, and to assess what mitigating 
actions may help to offset the pressure. An update on the position will be 
provided in the Finance Update to be presented to September Cabinet.

4.2.4 Budget Pressures

The Budget Pressure Fund for 2018/19 is £1.370m - £0.659m on-going and 
£0.711m one-off.

The following requests for funding have been made to the end of May 2018:

Neighbourhoods:

 Microsoft Licences – £0.274m recurrent funding is requested as the 
contract price for the Microsoft licenses has increased significantly since 
the previous contract was negotiated 3 years ago.  The licence enables 
users within the Council to have access and support for all Microsoft 
products and servers. 

Page 54



 Coroners Service – £0.100m (2018/19) and an additional £0.047m from 
2019/20 recurrent funding is requested due to an increase in Coroners’ 
salaries following Joint Negotiating Committee review, an increase in 
mortuary fees and additional costs in relation to the purchase of a 
scanning machine.

 Security N1R – £0.050m of recurrent funding is being requested to fund 
additional security following national terrorist activity and regional protests.

 Community Based Victim Support – £0.045m is being requested, one off, 
for an additional support worker (12 months only) to enable the 
investigation of high risk referrals due to a significant increase in Domestic 
Abuse levels in the Borough.

 Car Parking Income - £0.062m recurrent funding is requested to address 
pressure associated with the lost income from the closure of the town 
centre car parks.

Public Health:

 Hollingworth Lake - £0.090m of funding was approved by Cabinet on 27th 
February 2018 (Agenda item 8) to fund additional costs related to an 18 
month trial period for the transfer of the management of Hollingworth Lake 
to Link4Life Cultural & Leisure Trust. (£0.060m in 2018/19 & £0.030m in 
2019/20).

If the above are approved, there will be a balance of £0.702m remaining in the 
budget pressure fund - £0.126m on-going and £0.576m one off for 2018/19.

4.3 Savings Update 2018/19

4.3.1 The total savings target for 2018/19 is £0.507m:
 £0.397m of savings were approved at March 2017 Budget Council
 £0.110m of savings were approved at February 2018 Budget Council 

4.3.2  Services have not identified any issues for their achievement.

4.4 Collection Fund

4.4.1 The forecast Collection Fund Position for 2018/19 is a surplus of £3.346m, 
comprising:

 £2.396m surplus relating to Business Rates;
 £0.950m surplus relating to Council Tax.

4.4.2 The Collection Fund Update table in Appendix A shows the forecast surplus 
position on the Collection Fund as at 31st March 2019, and the allocation of 
the closing surplus between precepting authorities.

4.4.3 The Council’s share of the forecast Collection Fund surplus as at 31st March 
2019 is £3.191m. 

4.4.4 The main areas of overall variance to the budget are:     
 

Page 55



 Business Rates:

Explanation of variance
Variation to 
budget, £000

Forecast reduced Empty Property and Charitable Relief discounts, 
partially offset by forecast reduced Business Rates gross income 
and increased Small Business Rates Relief 

676

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision. 150

Actual surplus brought forward from 2017/18 is £1,570k higher 
than had been forecast as part of the 2018/19 Budget process. 1,570

2018/19 forecast surplus 2,396

 Council Tax:

Explanation of variance
Variation to 
budget, £000

Forecast prior year adjustments partially offset by increased 
Council Tax gross income and reduced discounts. (43)

Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
discount given. 700

Actual surplus brought forward from 2017/18 is £293k higher than 
had been forecast as part of the 2018/19 Budget process. 293

2018/19 forecast surplus 950

4.5. Alternatives considered

4.5.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 
critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 
are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. See Appendix A which provides an overview of budgets for Capital, Revenue 
and The Collection Fund detailed in section 4.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. There are no major legal implications arising as a result of this report except 
to note that debts that are recoverable can be enforced by court action in 
accordance with the court procedure rules.

Page 56



Consultation

7. All services engage with the production of the service based financial 
information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet 
Member for Finance, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have been 
informed of the 2018/19 financial position of the Council and its implications 
for future years. The report will be presented to the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny on 31st July 2018.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. For further information about this 
report or access to any 
background papers contact Stuart 
Smith

No1 Riverside Floor 2 

For Further Information Contact: Stuart Smith, 
Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
Tel : 01706 924196

Page 57

mailto:Stuart.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


FINANCE SERVICES

2018/19 P2 Finance Update Summary
Revenue Summary

Capital Summary

Savings Summary

Revenue Key Movements/Variances

Neighbourhoods

£0.731m - The Service is requesting budget pressure funding to mitigate £0.531m:

- Microsoft Licences, £0.274m - recurrent funding is requested for the licence needed to support all Microsoft products and servers.
- Coroners Service, £0.100m (2018/19) & £0.047m (2019/20) - due to an increase in Coroners’ salaries following Joint Negotiating
Committee review, an increase in mortuary fees and additional costs in relation to the purchase of a scanning machine.
- Security N1R, £0.050m - recurrent funding is being requested to fund additional security following terrorist activity and protests.
- Community Based Victim Support, £0.045m - additional support worker (12 months only) to enable the investigation of high risk
referrals due to a significant increase in Domestic Abuse levels in the Borough.
- Car Parking Income, £0.062m recurrent funding is requested to address pressure associated with the lost income from the closure of
the town centre car parks.

The remaining pressures within the Service an underachievement of highways sponsorship (£0.053m), shortfall in Number 1 Riverside
rental income (£0.075m) andpressures associated with the car parking service. (£0.074m).

Potential Pressure - Children's Service

The Service is predicting an overspend in relation to External Residential Placements due to an increase in the number of children looked
after by the Local Authority. In 2017/18 spend on External Residential Placements exceeded the budget by £1.200m. The Service is
currently assessing the existing and forecast future level of demand to quantify the pressure, and to assess what mitigating actions may
help to offset the pressure.

Directorate/ Detail
Budget 
Council

Virements/
Contingency

Current 
Budget

Service and 
Corporate 

Uncontrollables

Current 
Controllable
Approved 

Net 
Budget

Revised 
Controllable 
Net Budget

Forecast 
Spend

In Year 
Saving/

(Overspend)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (8) (9) (10)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Adult Care 3,220 3,526 6,746 3,459 3,287 3,287 3,287 0
Children's 19,991 463 20,454 18,974 1,480 1,480 1,480 0
Economy 23,225 35 23,260 707 22,553 22,553 22,553 0
Neighbourhoods 42,061 1,151 43,212 837 42,375 42,375 43,108 (733)
Public Health and Wellbeing 9,139 245 9,384 2,252 7,132 7,132 7,132 0
Resources 6,099 939 7,038 (3,766) 10,804 10,804 10,804 0
TOTAL GENERAL SERVICES SPENDING 103,735 6,359 110,094 22,463 87,631 87,631 88,364 (733)

Integrated Pool Budget Contribution 102,826 (5,361) 97,465 0 97,465 97,465 97,465 0
TOTAL POOLED BUDGETS 102,826 (5,361) 97,465 0 97,465 97,465 97,465 0

Finance Control: Corporately Held Budgets (5,976) (998) (6,974) (19,647) 12,673 12,673 12,673 0
Finance Control: Transformation Fund 1,719 0 1,719 0 1,719 1,719 1,719 0
Finance Control: Budget Pressures 1,370 0 1,370 0 1,370 1,370 1,370 0
TOTAL FINANCE CONTROL SPENDING (2,887) (998) (3,885) (19,647) 15,762 15,762 15,762 0

NET EXPENDITURE REQUIREMENTS 203,674 0 203,674 2,816 200,858 200,858 201,591 (733)

£68k 

£216k 

£10k

£213k 

Savings Target by Service £507k
No Reported Issues

Adult
Childrens
Economy
Neighbourhoods

Adults Children's Economy Neighbourhoods P Health Resources TOTAL
Actual Spend 173                   177                     1,733                  10-                          1                    -                      2,074          
Forecast Spend 4,654               19,505               47,205               26,178                 376               -                      97,919        

Approved Budget 4,827            19,682            48,937            26,169              377            -                 99,993        

Total
% £'000 % £'000 £'000

Forecast Collection Fund surplus at 31/03/19 2,396 950 3,346

Preceptors' Share of 2018/19 forecast outturn

Rochdale BC 99 2,372 86.26 819 3,191

Greater Manchester Combined Authority - Police 
& Crime Commissioner - - 9.88 94 94

Greater Manchester Combined Authority - Fire 
and Rescue Authority 1 24 3.85 37 61

Total forecast surplus 100 2,396 100 950 3,346

Business Rates Council Tax

Collection Fund Variance Explanation
Business Rates
£676k - Forecast reduced Empty Property and Charitable Relief discounts, partially offset by reduced
gross income and increased Small Business Rates Relief.
£150k - Forecast reduced charge relating to bad debt provision.
£1,570k - Actual surplus brought forward from 2017/18 is £1,570k higher than had been forecast as
part of the 2018/19 Budget process.
Council Tax
(£43k) - Forecast prior year adjustments partially offset by increased Council Tax gross income and
reduced discounts.
£700k- Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support Scheme discount given.
£293k - Actual surplus brought forward from 2017/18 is £293k higher than had been forecast as part of
the 2019/19 Budget process.

Collection Fund Update

The forecast Collection Fund Position for 2018/19 at P2 is a surplus of £3.346, comprising £2.396
surplus relating to Business Rates and £0.950m surplus relating to Council Tax.

The Council's share of the surplus is £3.191m.

P
age 58



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 31st July 2018
Portfolio Councillor Allen Brett

Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Victoria Bradshaw
Public/Private Document Public

Budget 2019/20 to 2021/22 Guidelines, Timetable and Public 
Engagement

Executive Summary

1. To recommend the budget guidelines, timetable and method of public 
engagement to be used in preparing the detailed 2019/20 budget and 
provisional budgets for 2020/21 and 2021/22.

Recommendation

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.1.4

2.2

To consider and approve the following:

The proposed budget timetable detailed at Appendix 1.

The revenue assumptions detailed in paragraph 4.2 to be incorporated into 
the budget setting process.

The revenue and capital budget principles referred to in paragraph 4.4. 

The proposed methods of public engagement outlined in paragraph 4.5 as 
part of the 2019/20 budget setting process.

Members are asked to note the Budget Review Sessions to be undertaken as 
part of the 2019/20 budget setting process.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Under the Budget & Policy Framework Cabinet is required to approve the 
proposed guidelines, timetable and methods of public engagement for setting 
the 2019/20 Budget and Provisional Budgets for 2020/21 and 2021/22 by 
September each year.

Page 59

Agenda Item 11



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

Timetable

The Council’s budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March 
each year. This is a statutory requirement. The process begins in June with 
approval being sought for the assumptions and principles on which the 
budget is to be based. These will be used as a part of the determination of 
the overall budget position.

Throughout the year we consult on the budget and savings proposals.  
Financial projections are updated as further information becomes available 
for the Local Government Finance Settlement and other known changes, 
including local decisions. The updated budget and feedback from 
consultations are reported back to Cabinet in February with 
recommendations for Budget Council, who will in turn set the budget.

Services are notified of their resource allocations following Budget Council in 
February. The full budget timetable is detailed at Appendix 1.

Revenue Budget Assumptions for 2019/20 – 2021/22

As part of the budget setting process the Council makes a number of 
assumptions in respect of the key elements of the Council’s revenue budget.  
Appendix 2 provides a summary of these assumptions for 2019/20, 2020/21 
and 2021/22. Future reports will make Cabinet aware of any changes that 
impact on the current budget assumptions. These are outlined below.

Local Government Finance Settlement
As part of the 2016/17 Local Government Finance Settlement the 
Government offered any council that wished to take it up a four-year funding 
settlement to 2019/20. The Council agreed to accept the offer, and the 
funding was confirmed in the 2017/18 and 2018/19 Local Government 
Finance settlements. This is the last year of the four-year funding offer. For 
Rochdale the four-year settlement covered the level of Revenue Support 
Grant.

Rochdale is part of the Greater Manchester 100% Business Rates Retention 
Pilot Scheme in 2017/18 and 2018/19, and as such will not receive Revenue 
Support Grant directly. Instead the levels of Revenue Support Grant 
contained in the four-year settlement are built into the revised calculation of 
Business Rates Top-up Grant under the 100% Business Rates Retention 
Pilot Scheme (see section 4.2.4). It is assumed for planning purposes that 
the pilot scheme will continue in 2019/20 and future years. 

Council Tax Increases - assumptions 2019/20 – 2021/22
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is to maximise income 
generated locally and therefore, assumes, for planning purposes, a general 
increase in Council Tax of 1.99% for each year 2019/20 to 2021/22 in line 

Page 60



4.2.3

4.2.4

with expected referendum limits.

The 2017/18 Local Government Finance settlements offered the flexibility to 
charge an Adult Social Care Precept of up to an additional 6% on council tax 
for the three years 2017/18 to 2019/20. 

A 3% precept was approved for 2017/18, and a 2% precept was approved 
for 2018/19. A 1% precept has been assumed for 2019/20, in order to 
maintain a 6% precept across the 3 years. The Government has not made 
an announcement on the future of the Adult Care precept after 2019/20, and 
no precept has been assumed for 2020/21 and 2021/22.

Any variation in the level of Council Tax increase approved will have an 
impact on the forecast budget position.

Council Tax Base
The Council Tax base is currently 53,537, representing the number of Band 
D equivalent properties that the Council can collect Council Tax from.  The 
Council Tax base will be reviewed and formally considered by Cabinet in 
November of each year. The level of Council Tax Base is a key component 
in the calculation of resources available to the Council.

Business Rates
Rochdale is part of a Greater Manchester pilot for 100% business rates 
retention, which commenced in 2017/18.  The pilot authorities each retain 
100% of locally-raised business rates. In return Greater Manchester will 
forgo Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the Public Health Grant. 
Authorities’ tariffs and top-ups will be adjusted to ensure that these changes 
are cost neutral to individual authorities. 

From 2020/21 it is proposed that councils will retain 75% of their business 
rates income, incorporating Revenue Support Grant, Public Health Grant 
and other grants, with suitable transitional arrangements. There is no 
information on the consequences of this change at this stage. 

The Government is also undertaking a Fair Funding Review into the relative 
needs and resources of local authorities, which will form the basis of the 
distribution of funding to authorities from 2020/21. The Council responded to 
the initial Government consultation on the Fair Funding Review. At this stage 
no information is available on the implications of the review for individual 
authorities.
 
The Budget assumes that there will be no detriment in funding as a result of 
the move to 75% business rates retention and the Fair Funding Review, until 
further information is made available by the Government.

The budget assumes, for planning purposes, an increase in the level of 
business rates income received of 2.2% in 2019/20, 2% in 2020/21, and 2% 
in 2021/22. The business rates increases are based on the assumed CPI at 
September, as per the 2018/19 Local Government Finance Settlement.

Page 61



4.2.5

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.2.9

4.2.10

Pay Inflation
The budget assumes for planning purposes that the pay award will be 2% 
for 2019/20, with a 1% increase per annum for 2020/21 and 2021/22. Any 
settlement above the assumed increase would increase the expenditure 
requirement for 2019/20 to 2021/22. Every change of 0.5% equates to 
approximately £400k. 

Members of Cabinet on 30th January 2018 approved a revision to the 
Rochdale local living wage to £8.75 per hour with effect from 1st April 2018. 
Members also approved a delegation to officers to increase the Rochdale 
local living wage annually in line with the Rowntree Foundation rate until 
such time as this was matched by the Council’s lowest spinal column points 
on the NJC pay spine.

Superannuation Rates
The employer superannuation contribution rate is assumed to remain at 
20.5% in 2019/20, and to increase by 0.9% per annum in 2020/21 and 
2021/22. 

Price Inflation
The budget assumes 0% inflation across the majority of the Council’s non-
pay expenditure budgets including grants that the Council provides. 
Contractual arrangements and other significant inflation issues will be 
considered on a case by case basis. 

Discretionary Fees and Charges
Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. For 2019/20 to 2021/22 
the amount of increase assumed for planning purposes is recommended to 
be 2% per annum. 

Waste Disposal Levy
The Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a formula across Greater 
Manchester which takes account of recycling levels. If Rochdale Borough 
did not increase recycling at the same level as other GM Authorities, there 
would be an impact on the waste disposal levy charged to the Council thus 
leading to an increased cost to the Council’s budget. Under the new disposal 
contract, contamination tolerances may tighten to the extent that there are 
higher levels of rejected loads, which would eventually impact on recycling 
rates.
The Waste Disposal Levy assumed for in the budget is based on the latest 
projections provided by GM Waste Disposal Authority (GMWDA).

The GMWDA levy is estimated to increase by 2.9% in 2019/20, 1.5% in 
202/21 and 1.6% in 2021/22. 

Passenger Transport Levy
The budget assumes a 0% increase in the underlying Passenger Transport 
Levy for 2019/20 to 2021/22. The Passenger Transport Levy will be subject 
to consideration/agreement as a consequence of the Passenger Transport 
Authority’s budget setting process in 2019/20 and subsequent years.

Page 62



4.2.11 Integration of Health & Social Care

From 2018/19 the Local Authority is required to operate a formal pooled 
budget arrangement for health and social care, as part of the GM Health & 
Social Care Transformation Funding Programme. The pooling of resources 
across the locality will provide more opportunities to explore value for 
money, economies of scale, reduce duplication and streamline processes. A 
key driver is to have a one system approach, improving the quality of care 
provided to the individual.

The pooled budget brings together resources from a range of organisations 
including the Clinical Commissioning Group, the Local Authority, Better 
Care Funds and GM level resources to invest in transformation of service 
delivery, (known as Transformation Funding). 

The Council has continued to progress its joint Senior Manager 
arrangements with Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 
Commissioning Group (HMRCCG) to administrate and manage the pooled 
budget created to deliver health and care integration in Rochdale. Jointly 
funded posts are in place and the proposal for one accountable officer will 
be finalised through the first quarter of the new municipal year.  The Section 
151 officer has delegated responsibility for the management of the pooled 
budget to the Chief Finance officer of the Clinical Commissioning Group to 
operate as one resource for the delivery of health and care. The pooled fund 
will be administered through the Integrated Commissioning board which is a 
joint committee of Rochdale Council and HMRCCG.

Integration of commissioning has progressed with health and social care 
commissioners working as one directorate to plan, organise and procure 
health, social care and public health services and support for all ages. 
Corporate services from the council and HMRCCG are being reviewed and 
merged where this would add value and improve the service.  This has 
already taken place in finance with Human resources, and other support 
services are being considered. The Greater Manchester Health and Social 
Care Partnership (GMHSCP) Transformation Fund has awarded to 
Rochdale/ HMRCCG the sum of £25.2m to support the move from the 
previous model of health and care to one more focussed on prevention and 
out of hospital support. The money will be managed through the pooled 
fund. 

The delivery of health and care will begin to move to the Local Care 
Organisation as it formally becomes a partnership alliance from April 2018. 
Health and care services will be provided through this partnership and over 
the last twelve months service delivery of integrated health and care teams, 
urgent care support care home support and intermediate tier services have 
been expanded to provide a better offer to patients and people in Rochdale. 
The Family Services model has progressed focussing on Children, young 
people and their families and has enhanced its support for mental wellbeing 
and early help for children across the whole system. The Family Services 
Model will move forward into an alliance partnership during the next twelve 
months.

Page 63



4.2.12

At this stage the 2019/20 budget assumes an estimated contribution to the 
Pooled Fund from Rochdale Council of £93.9m, and an estimated 
contribution from the Pooled Fund to Providers of £107.9m.

Improved Better Care Fund

The Better Care Fund (BCF) brings together elements of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Local Authority budgets into a pooled 
arrangement. This is to encompass integrated commissioning which will 
support the transformation and integration of health and social care services. 

The national Improved Better Care Fund allocations of £825m in 2018/19 
and £1.5bn in 2019/20, confirmed in the 2018/19 Local Government Finance 
Settlement, assumed that councils will increase Council Tax for the Adult 
Social Care precept. The allocation methodology uses the 2013 social care 
relative needs formula and allocates funding against resources available. 
Rochdale’s allocation is £9.240m in 2019/20. 

In the March 2017 Budget the Government announced an additional £2bn to 
help local authorities provide high quality social care to more people and to 
ease the pressure on the NHS. The £2bn is to be paid over 3 years, £1bn in 
2017/18, £0.674bn in 2018/19 and £0.337bn in 2019/20. The funds are to be 
built into the original Improved Better Care Fund, with local authorities 
working closely with NHS colleagues to consider how the funds can be 
spent effectively. Rochdale’s allocation is £1.568m for 2019/20. 

Improved Better Care Fund

2019/20
£m

Initial allocation per 2017/18 Local 
Government Finance Settlement

9.240

Additional funding for adult social care 
announced at Budget 2017

1.568

Total Improved Better Care Fund 10.808

No information has been provided by the Government on grant allocations 
for 2020/21 and 2021/22. The budget assumes the same funding levels as 
2019/20 for planning purposes.

New Homes Bonus

The New Homes Bonus (NHB) Scheme is designed to provide incentives 
and rewards for Local Authorities who have a net increase in housing stock 
and have brought empty properties back into use in their areas. From 
2019/20 the number of years the NHB is paid for is 4 years. Growth in 
housing stock will only be rewarded above a baseline of 0.4% of opening 
housing stock.

Page 64



4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.4

4.4.1

4.4.2

4.5

4.5.1

4.5.2

The assumed level of New Homes Bonus grant in the budget is based on 
the estimated net growth in total housing stock, net of demolitions and the 
number of long-term empty properties.

Capital

A review of the capital programme is currently being undertaken. This review 
will provide a three year capital programme for 2019/20 to 2021/22 taking 
into consideration the estimated reduction in capital resources and the 
limited revenue funding available for Capital Schemes in these years. 

Aims of the Capital Programme
The Capital Programme aims to:

- Deliver investment in the Borough to support the Borough wide 
priorities, including economic benefit and gross value added to the 
Borough;

- Deliver investment in Service Provision to deliver future savings;
- Maintain and enhance the Council’s assets;
- Support Devolution;
- Meet Statutory provision;
- Provide Value for Money.

A report to Cabinet in September will recommend a Capital Programme for 
2019/20 to 2021/22 for consideration. This will then be included as part of 
the 2019/20 budget consultation.

Budget Principles

Detailed guidelines are provided to all relevant staff to ensure that revenue 
budgets for individual services are prepared consistently. These guidelines 
contain details of the assumptions that are to be made in setting the revenue 
budget and also set out broad principles that are to be adhered to. The 
principles that are proposed for inclusion in the budget guidelines for 
2019/20 to 2021/22 are provided at Appendix 3.

The Capital Principles have been developed to enable focus on the purpose 
of the Capital Programme and to seek agreement for the use of limited 
resources. The principles for the Capital Programme are provided at 
Appendix 4.

Public Engagement

The Council is intending to undertake a Public Engagement initiative during 
Summer and Autumn 2018, involving residents, businesses and other 
stakeholders as part of the consultation on the budget 2019/20 to 2021/22 
and savings proposals.

As in previous years the initiative is intended to:

- raise awareness of the services that the Council currently delivers;

Page 65



4.5.3

4.5.4

- raise awareness of the Council’s current budget position, both 
resources and expenditure;

- explain the future challenges as a result of funding reductions, 
increased demand for services and other pressures, and the difficult 
decisions we have to make;

- explain the integration of Health and Social Care budgets between 
the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group;

- highlight the part that residents and businesses can play in the future 
of Rochdale and in helping to reduce costs;

- highlight the need for the Council and residents/businesses to work 
together;

- highlight the development of the Co-operative Council approach;

- undertake a general conversation with stakeholders on their opinions 
and thoughts on the above.

Wherever possible the intention will be to work alongside other engagement 
initiatives to raise awareness of the budget challenges, to seek views and 
also highlight how residents can help.

Public Engagement for the Budget 2019/20 is suggested to be undertaken 
as a three stage process:

A)  General Budget Conversation during July – September by :

 Prezi animated digital presentation – updated for 2019/20. 
 Edited Prezi animation – 10 x 25 second clips that can be shared on 

the Council’s Twitter, Facebook and website.
 Posters in public areas, to promote ‘have your say’ message and the 

online consultations.
 Social media posts – with links to online proposals.
 Council website updates – homepage and landing page banners, plus 

specific ‘Budget’ section as in previous savings consultations.
 Facebook advertising – promoting participation in the online 

consultations to residents.
 Media releases to local media – announcing each phase, 

summarising main proposals, overall budget position, reasoning 
behind proposals and promoting ways to get involved. 

 Media interviews with local radio about the challenges faced, the 
importance of getting involved, the council is listening and we do want 
to hear from residents, together with explanations about the options 
around each proposal.

 Messages on digital screens and public PCs in libraries and other 
public buildings.

 We will also consider a small media briefing with local press to outline 

Page 66



4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.7

4.7.1

and talk through the proposals, answer questions on the detail and 
clarify the headline messages.

B)  Formal consultation of the Budget 2019/20 and savings proposals during 
July 2018 – January 2019.

C)  March 2019 – provide feedback online as to the engagement process 
and what is happening as a result of the resident participation in the Budget 
process.

Budget Review Sessions

As part of the budget process Budget Review Sessions will be held for each 
Cabinet Portfolio Area. 

The aim of the sessions is:

 For Directors to provide service information to enable Members to 
scrutinise spend and service priorities;

 To enable a review process to be undertaken on budgets; 
 To review options for savings over the next three years to meet the 

budget gap in 2019/20 – 2021/22.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 
process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally 
important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are 
agreed, reasonable and consistently applied by all services.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.1.1

Risk Implications 

The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known 
levels of expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation of 
these assumptions will not be received/ finalised until November/December 
this year.  There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget where risks to 
the projections contained in this report have been identified. 

Page 67



6.1.2 The most significant of these are:-

 Monitoring of the 2018/19 budget will provide Cabinet with regular 
updates on any pressures/savings for the Council. Any associated on 
going implications will be incorporated into the budget projections for 
2019/20 and future years.

 Savings – the level of savings required for 2019/20, 2020/21 and 
2021/22 is currently being considered. There is a risk to the overall 
budget of the non-achievement of these savings due to the 
identification and/or implementation of the proposals. A three year 
budget is to be set in February 2019 which provides time to implement 
the level of savings required to balance the budget over the period 
2019/20 to 2021/22.

 Specific Grants and Contributions – the number and amount of 
specific grants received by the Council may be lower/higher than 
anticipated. 

 Council Tax – Central Government provides a cap on the Council Tax 
increase a Local Authority can make before a referendum of the local 
residents is required.  The budget assumes a 2.99% increase in 
2019/20 comprising a 1.99% increase for general purposes and a 1% 
increase in respect of the adult care precept, and a 1.99% increase in 
both 2020/21 and 2021/22, comprising a 1.99% increase for general 
purposes and a 0% increase in respect of the adult care precept. 
These percentage increases are included for planning purposes only, 
and will be reviewed by Cabinet leading up to a recommendation at 
Budget Council for each year. 

 Council Services - the impact of the economic climate on the residents 
of Rochdale Borough and the increased demand this may lead to for 
Council services could impact on cost of services, as could general 
demographic changes.

 Health and Social Care Devolution – the impact of pooling budgets 
with the Clinical Commissioning Group within a pooled Budget. The 
financial risk is that the investment in health and social care services 
does not deliver the benefits assumed. These benefits are required 
not only to fund interventions to invest to save in the long term but 
also to contribute towards closing the budget gaps of all partners 
delivering health and social care services.

 Public Health – impact of the reduction in Public Health funding.

 Waste Disposal Levy – the Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a 
formula across Greater Manchester, which takes account of recycling 
levels. Should Rochdale Borough not increase recycling at the same 
level as other GM Authorities this will impact on the levy, and would 
lead to an increased cost to the Council’s budget. There is the risk that 
under the new disposal contract, contamination tolerances may 

Page 68



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.2.4

6.2.5

tighten to the extent that there are higher levels of rejected loads, 
which would eventually impact on recycling rates.

 Inflation – impact of changes in the price of goods and services used 
by the Council compared to the percentage assumed in the budget 
projections. 

 Fees and charges income – impact of any economic slowdown on 
levels of usage of charged for Council services could lead to income 
levels not being achieved.

 Investment income – the impact of low interest rates and implications 
of the economic slowdown on the level of dividends/interest received 
by the Council.

 Academies – the impact of the Government’s policies regarding the 
conversion of schools to Academies on the Council’s budget.

Legal Implications

The Council is under a duty to calculate the budget in accordance with 
Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must make three 
calculations namely: an estimate of the Council’s gross revenue expenditure; 
an estimate of anticipated income; and a calculation of the difference 
between the two. The amount of the budget requirement must be sufficient to 
meet the Council’s budget commitments and ensure a balanced budget. The 
amount of the budget requirement must leave the Council with adequate 
financial reserves. The level of budget requirement must not be 
unreasonable having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its Council Tax 
payers and non-domestic rate payers.  

Failure to make a lawful Council Tax on or before 11 March could have 
serious financial results for the Council and make the Council vulnerable to 
an Order from the Courts requiring it to make a specified increase in Council 
Tax.

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on 
local authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their 
financial affairs'.
 
Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand 
notice. The Secretary of State has made regulations, which require charging 
authorities to issue demand notices in a form and with contents prescribed by 
these regulations. 

There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons or 
bodies appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-domestic 
rates in each area about proposals for expenditure (including capital 
expenditure) for each financial year.

Page 69



Personnel Implications

The report outlines the proposed timetable for preparing the detailed 
2019/20 budget and this timetable includes the requirement to undertake 
formal workforce consultation with the staff and trade unions.   The 
consultation will be undertaken in accordance with the Council’s established 
formal staff consultation processes including meetings of the Joint 
Consultative Negotiation Group (JCNG).

Equalities Impacts 

Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment
Workforce equality impact assessments will be provided with any savings 
proposals and an overall workforce equality impact assessment on the 
budget will be presented to facilitate final decision making.

Equality/Community Impact Assessments
Equality Impact assessments will be provided with any savings proposals 
and an overall equality impact assessment on the budget will be presented to 
facilitate final decision making.

6.3

6.3.1

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

Consultation

7.1

7.2

Stakeholders are consulted at appropriate stages throughout the budget 
preparation process. The Council is intending to carry out a Public 
Engagement initiative during the Summer and Autumn of 2018 involving 
residents, businesses and their representative bodies and other 
stakeholders.

Consultation with the Trade Unions via the Joint Consultative Negotiation 
Group (JCNG) will be undertaken and the outcome of consultations will be 
considered by Cabinet.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. Budget 2019/20 to 2021/22 files Finance Services, N1 Riverside 

For Further Information Contact: Victoria Bradshaw
victoria.bradshaw@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 925409

Page 70

mailto:victoria.bradshaw@rochdale.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1

Budget Timetable 2019/20 to 2021/22 – Key Meeting Dates

Date Meeting/Event Purpose

2018
June Cabinet Cabinet 26th June

  1. Budget Guidelines and Timetable (Corporate O&S 19/06)
  2. Public Engagement 

July Cabinet Cabinet 24th July
1. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - for consultation

Consultation 27 July Phase 1 Consultation Starts
September Budget Cabinet Budget Cabinet 25th September

1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20    } For Consultation
2. Capital Programme 2019/20 - 2021/22   } For Consultation
3. Revenue Budget 2019/20 - 2021/22         } For Consultation                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
4. MTFS 2019/20 - 2023/24                         

Consultation 10 September Phase 1 Consultation Ends
October Budget Cabinet Cabinet 30th October

1. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2021/21 - Post consultation

November Budget Cabinet Budget Cabinet 13th November
1. Capital Programme 2019/20 - 2021/22   
2. Revenue Budget 2019/20 - 2021/22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
3. Council Tax and Business Rates Bases 2019/20
4. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20 - Post Consultation
5. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - 2nd round for Consultation

Consultation 14 November Phase 2 Consultation Starts
2019
January Budget Cabinet Cabinet 29th January

1. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - 2nd round post consultation
2. Revenue Budget Update 2019/20 - 2021/22

Consultation 4 January Phase 2 Consultation Ends
February Budget Cabinet 

Budget Council
Cabinet 12th February
Council 27th February
1. Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20
2. MTFS 2019/20 - 2023/24
3. Local Government Act 2003
4. Revenue Budget and Council tax 2019/20

Page 71



APPENDIX 2

Budget Assumptions 2019/20 to 2021/22

 

Area of Budget 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Pay 2% Increase 1% Increase 1% Increase

20.5% 21.4% 22.3%
(0.0% Increase) (0.9% Increase) (0.9% Increase)

Prices* 0% 0% 0%

Discretionary Fees & Charges 2% Increase 2% Increase 2% Increase

Underlying Waste Disposal Levy 2.9% Increase 1.5% Decrease 1.6% Decrease
Underlying PTA Levy 0%   Increase 0%   Increase 0%   Increase

Council Tax

General Increase 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%
Adult Care Precept 1.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total Council Tax Increase 2.99% 1.99% 1.99%

Business Rates
Business Rates income/Top-up Grant 2.2% Increase 2% Increase 2% Increase

Superannuation Contribution Rate

* Prices – Contractual arrangements and other significant inflation issues will be considered on a 
case by case basis. 

Page 72



APPENDIX 3

REVENUE BUDGET PRINCIPLES

1. Budget Preparation

1.1 Service estimates are required at service level for the years 2019/20 to 
2021/22.  The format of the service submissions, which are to be 
supported by appropriate working papers, will be determined by the 
Chief Financial Officer in consultation with Directors.

1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued 
from time to time on local authority accounting practices and other 
related issues.

1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable.

2. Existing Service Level Budgets

2.1 The budget will initially be prepared on the basis that current resources 
support existing service levels and with the exception of the schools 
budget should be varied to reflect:
(a) The full year effect of previous year’s savings proposals.
(b) Consequences of the approved capital programme.
(c) Adjustments in relation to specific ‘one year only’ allocations and 

other time expired funding.
(d) Other specific Council decisions.

2.2 Most education and related budgets are funded through a specific 
grant namely the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Separate systems 
and procedures relating to DSG funded budgets operate outside of the 
mainstream budget guidelines.  

2.3 Salary budgets are to be prepared with reference to the 2019/20 
budget (net of any vacancy factor) adjusted for pay awards, approved 
service changes, savings and other approved variations. The salary 
budgets can only be used to employ staff in established posts on 
approved grades in line with the following conditions:

(a) All changes to the establishment where Council funding is available 
in full must be approved by Cabinet, or within the requirements of 
the Scheme of Delegation.

(b) All changes to the establishment where resource implications arise, 
even if the costs are met entirely from external funding, must also 
be approved by Cabinet, or within the requirements of the Scheme 
of Delegation.

(c) Posts funded from external sources must be established as 
temporary or specific purpose posts unless it can be demonstrated 
that:

Page 73



 the external funding is permanent, or
 specific approval has been given, or
 future years’ costs can be contained within current budgets.

(d) Directors must balance service requirements against the need to 
manage within their budgets when taking decisions to fill vacant 
posts or employ temporary staff.

3.        Discretionary Fees and Charges

3.1 Fees and charges must be reviewed on an annual basis.  A report will 
be submitted to Cabinet in September each year on proposals for the 
following year. 

3.2 Fees and charges are to be varied to achieve an overall annual 
increase in income for each Service in line with the level approved by 
Cabinet. Increases can be implemented at any time subject to the 
overall financial target being achieved.  

3.3 If the target cannot be achieved by increasing fees and charges then 
alternative savings must be identified.  Claims by Directors to exempt 
or apply a lesser increase to any part of their service must be justified 
in the context of their Service policies and plans and referred to 
Cabinet.

4. External Funding

4.1 Wherever possible external funding should be used to reduce pressure 
on current expenditure, thereby releasing resources for redirection into 
priority areas.

4.2 All legal, human resources, financial and administrative support costs 
required to manage grant conditions and fulfill the role of the 
accountable body should be charged, wherever possible, against the 
funding regime.

5. Integration of Health & Social Care

5.1 From 2018/19 the Local Authority is required to operate a formal 
pooled budget arrangement for health and social care, as part of the 
GM Health & Social Care Transformation Funding Programme.

5.2 As part of the pooled budget arrangement, the Council and CCG will 
enter into a Section 75 Agreement and a Risk Sharing Agreement.

6. Consultation

6.1 Members will take account of consultations with stakeholders at 
appropriate stages throughout the budget preparation process. This will 

Page 74



include Townships, Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Trade Unions, 
partners and the public.

Page 75



APPENDIX 4 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME PRINCIPLES

1. Capital Programme Preparation

1.1 The Capital Programme is compiled at project level for the years 
2019/20 through to 2021/22.  The format of the capital schemes 
submissions, which are to be supported by appropriate working papers, 
will be determined by the Chief Financial Officer in consultation with 
Directors. 

1.2 Estimate preparation should take account of technical guidance issued 
from time to time on local authority accounting practices and other 
related issues. The profiling of capital expenditure into the correct 
financial years and over the projects development will be key to ensure 
the amount of re phasing of capital resources from one year to another 
is kept to a minimum, and to reduce the amount of revenue budget 
required to finance the project.

1.3 The budget process shall adhere to the approved timetable.

2. Principles for the Capital Programme

2.1 Capital Resources are to be used as follows:

 Decisions on the use of Capital Receipts will be considered as part 
of the budget process.

 Un-ring fenced and ring fenced externally funded grants are 
considered on a case by case basis.

 Any new borrowing is considered with the implications for the 
revenue budget position.

2.2 Capital projects for approval are:

 Considered by Portfolio Holders for the service who agree to the 
services requests for funding.

 Completed to ensure all implications of the Capital Scheme are 
included in the ‘Business Cases’.

 Inclusive of Multi Year Schemes with spend profiled accurately 
across the financial years.

Page 76



1

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 31st July 2018
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance

Report Author Victoria Bradshaw

Public Document Public

Savings Programme 2019/20 to 2020/21

Executive Summary

1. This report provides Cabinet Members with: 

 Recommendations regarding Savings Proposals in order to meet the 
budget gap for 2019/20 and 2020/21.

Recommendation

2.1 That Cabinet considers the saving proposals contained in the report as the 
basis for consultation and notes the consultation timetable and process as 
detailed in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced Revenue Budget 
and Capital Programme 2019/20 to Budget Council and provisional budgets 
for 2020/21 to 2021/22. The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 
2019/20 by the 11th March 2019.  To enable the achievement of this statutory 
requirement savings proposals are considered to reduce the expenditure of 
the Council.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.1.1

Timetable

The Budget process begins in June with approval, by Cabinet, of the 
assumptions and principles on which the budget is to be based. These are 
used as a part of the determination of the overall budget position and are 

Page 77

Agenda Item 12



2

4.1.2

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

currently being incorporated into Service budgets.

Throughout the year we consult on the budget and savings proposals.  
Financial projections are updated as further information becomes available 
from Central Government and other changes, including local decisions. The 
updated budget and feedback from consultations are reported back to Cabinet 
during the year and in February 2019 with recommendations for Budget 
Council, who will in turn set the budget. The timetable for the Revenue Budget 
and Savings Programme is provided at Appendix 1.

Savings Programme 2019/20 to 2020/21

Budget Council 28th February 2018 approved provisional budgets for 2019/20 
and 2020/21. The budget gap identified for General Council Services and 
Aligned Services was £3.6m for 2019/20 and £6.0m for 2020/21. The budget 
position of the Council is reviewed throughout the budget process as more 
information becomes available. Cabinet will receive the first update in 
September.

During April to June Directorates have engaged in producing the saving 
proposals contained in this report for Cabinet Members to consider. A number 
of Budget Review Sessions have been held where officers and members have 
scrutinised service functions, finance and performance matters for each 
Directorate to inform the process and support the delivery of a balanced 
budget for 2019/20.

Saving Proposals are classified as follows:
 Saving proposals not requiring service consultation;
 Service Delivery proposals;
 Workforce proposals being progressed via the Council’s Delegated 

Decision Making process; 
 Proposals being progressed outside the savings programme.

Table 1 summarises the savings proposals being considered within this report 
towards meeting the budget gap for 2019/20 to 2020/21.

Table 1 Savings Proposals 2019/20 to 2020/21

Ongoing One-off Ongoing One-off
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Service Savings Proposals
Proposals not requiring consultation -1,214 -200 -1,492 -100
Outside the process -490 0 -490 0
Service Delivery Proposals -473 0 -574 0

-2,177 -200 -2,556 -100

2019/20 2020/21

The proposals not requiring service consultation are proposals which:

Page 78



3

4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.3

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

 Identify alternative financial resources to continue providing the 
service;

 Generate additional income for the Council without impacting on 
users;

 Improve the efficiency of delivering a service;
 Saving proposals with workforce implications which will be 

consulted on via the Council’s Delegated Decision Making process.

The reductions with no service delivery implications do not require 
consultation.  These proposals generate on going savings of £1.214m ongoing 
and £0.200m one-off savings in 2019/20, and a further £0.278m ongoing and 
£0.100m one-off savings in 2020/21, and are detailed in the private report 
provided separately on this Agenda. There are a number of workforce 
proposals where consultation will be via the Council’s Delegated Decision 
Making process.

Proposals being progressed outside the savings programme will be subject to 
separate reports to Cabinet.

Saving proposals with Service Delivery implications totaling £0.473m in 
2019/20 and a further £0.101m in 2020/21 will be subject to consultation from 
27th July 2018 with stakeholder groups, staff and service users as appropriate 
and are detailed in the private report provided separately on this agenda.

Alternatives Considered

The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. Whilst 
budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines a number of 
alternative options relating to savings proposals and budget pressures are 
considered as part of the overall budget setting process.

Consideration has been given to a number of options in putting forward the 
savings proposals contained in this report and the report outlines any 
alternatives. To do nothing was not considered to be an option as the Council 
is legally required to set a balanced budget.

Cabinet Members could decide not to implement these proposals and provide 
alternative options to enable a balanced budget to be achieved.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Financial implications are considered in the main body of the report.

Page 79



4

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

The Council is required to set a lawful budget for 2019/20 by the by 11th 
March 2019 and there is a risk if we do not responsibly put forward proposals 
for consideration to meet the budget reductions/pressures.

Risk implications have been added where applicable within individual 
detailed reports.  To manage this risk we will supply Cabinet members with 
copies of all available implications to make informed decisions.

Where relevant, specific legal issues have been identified in the individual 
savings proposal reports. Legal advice has also been provided in relation to 
the Equality Act duties, and recent case law decisions on both consultation 
requirements and equality impact assessments.

Advice has been provided on the following:

 The need to ensure that service reductions do not constitute a failure on 
the part of the Council to fulfill statutory duties.

 The need to be aware of contractual arrangements with third parties 
which can only be varied by agreement or which (if that does not prove 
possible) can only be terminated by substantial notice periods and 
consider the financial implications of any variations.

 The need to be aware of restrictions which affect property assets. Some 
have restrictions on usage, some have conditions attached to gifts and 
planning restrictions might apply. On this last aspect, there needs to be 
separation of the Council’s statutory role from that of property owner.

 Some proposals may ultimately involve the transfer of staff with the 
resultant need to undertake statutory consultations.

 Some proposals will involve potential redundancy. This will involve 
statutory consultations.

 Advice on contractual, procurement law matters (including staff related 
matters).

If there are personnel implications arising for the proposals contained within 
this report, these are summarised below:

 Some of these proposals could potentially result in a reduction in the 
number of established posts within the Council and depending on the 
outcome of consultation and final decisions made these will be deleted as 
a consequence of these proposals. 

 The Council will apply its established policies and procedures to identify 
which posts are identified as potentially redundant and which employees 
will be at risk of redundancy. This will include the application of the 
Council’s redundancy selection criteria where this would need to be 
applied.

 Where posts proposed to be deleted are occupied the employee(s) 

Page 80



5

6.6

concerned will become at risk of redundancy.

 All employees affected will be provided with support through the Council’s 
established procedures for dealing with staff that are at risk of 
redundancy.

 Through the application of these policies and procedures, the Council will 
seek to minimize the number of employees who may be compulsory 
redundant.  In this respect, the Council will seek to provide suitable 
alternative employment wherever this is possible and will seek to achieve 
reductions by voluntary measures wherever possible, by seeking 
volunteers for early retirement/voluntary redundancy in areas where staff 
are affected by the proposals.

 The proposals will be subject to full consultation with staff and trade 
unions in line with statutory requirements.   It is considered that the total 
number of jobs affected during the budget setting process is likely to be 
below 100. The Council is preparing to comply with the required statutory 
minimum consultation period of 30 days for less than 100 redundancies 
before making final decisions on its proposals.  In addition, the Council 
will also ensure that the consultation process is meaningful and 
commences when potential redundancies are contemplated, that full 
consideration is given to the outcome and any comments received before 
final decisions are made regarding implementation, which are also legal 
requirements.


Equalities Impacts

Workforce Equality Impact Assessment

A workforce impact assessment will be undertaken to understand how the 
overall proposals   affect the make-up of the workforce.

The Council undertook a workforce EIA for the savings process in previous 
years. The same analysis will be undertaken for the cohort of staff affected 
by the savings proposals in 2019/20 and 2020/21.  A full equalities impact 
assessment will be undertaken following the implementation of the savings 
proposals, at which point we may need to revisit our equalities action plan or 
other policies.

Consultation

7.1

7.2

Consultation is to be undertaken with stakeholder groups, staff and service 
users as appropriate. Consultation will commence consultation on 27th July 
2018 and end on 10th September 2018. 

The report will be presented for consultation to Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 31st July 2018 

Page 81



6

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Victoria Bradshaw

Tel: 01706 925409, 
Victoria.Bradshaw@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 82



7

Appendix 1
Revenue Budget and Savings Programme Timetable

Date Meeting/Event Purpose

2018
Cabinet Cabinet 24th July

Corporate O&S 31st July
1. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - for consultation

Consultation 27 July Phase 1 Consultation Starts

September

Budget Cabinet Budget Cabinet 25th September
1. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20    } 
2. Capital Programme 2019/20 - 2021/22   } For Consultation
3. Revenue Budget 2019/20 - 2021/22         }                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
4. MTFS 2019/20 - 2023/24                         

Consultation 10 September Phase 1 Consultation Ends

October

Budget Cabinet Cabinet 30th October
1. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - Post consultation

Budget Cabinet Budget Cabinet 13th November
Corporate O&S 20th November
1. Capital Programme 2019/20 - 2021/22   
2. Revenue Budget 2019/20 - 2021/22                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
3. Council Tax and Business Rates Bases 2019/20
4. Discretionary Fees & Charges 2019/20 - Post Consultation
5. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - 2nd round for Consultation

Consultation 14 November Phase 2 Consultation Starts
2019

Budget Cabinet Cabinet 29th January
1. Savings Programme 2019/20 - 2020/21 - 2nd round post consultation
2. Revenue Budget Update 2019/20 - 2021/22

Consultation 4 January Phase 2 Consultation Ends

February

Budget Cabinet Corporate O&S 11th February
Cabinet 12th February
Council 27th February
1. Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20
2. MTFS 2019/20 - 2023/24
3. Local Government Act 2003
4. Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2019/20

July

November

January

Page 83



Document is Restricted

Page 84

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	COSActionsList

	6 Work Programme
	7 Greater Manchester Combined Authority Scrutiny Committee Meetings
	Item_4_DRAFT_MINS_Housing_Planning__Environment_OS_Committee_Minutes_5_june
	ITEM_9_CORPORATE_ISSUES_MINUTES_18.04.18

	8 Property Investments
	9 Delegated Approvals 2017/18
	10 Finance Update Report 2018/19
	P2 FU Dashboard for Cabinet - UPDATED

	11 Budget 2019/20 to 2021/22 Guidelines, Timetable and Public Engagement
	12 Savings Programme 2019/20 to 2020/21
	14 Savings Programme 2019/20 to 2020/21

